
Committee Agenda   

 

1 

 

 
Area Planning Subcommittee East 
Wednesday, 17th July, 2013 
 
You are invited to attend the next meeting of Area Planning Subcommittee East, which will 
be held at:  
 
Council Chamber, Civic Offices, High Street, Epping 
on Wednesday, 17th July, 2013 
at 7.30 pm . 
 Glen Chipp 

Chief Executive 
 

Democratic Services 
Officer 

Mark Jenkins - The Office of the Chief Executive 
Email: democraticservices@eppingforestdc.gov.uk Tel: 
01992 564607 

 
Members: 
 
Councillors Mrs S Jones (Chairman), P Keska (Vice-Chairman), K Avey, W Breare-Hall, 
A Boyce, Mrs H Brady, T Church, P Gode, Mrs A Grigg, D Jacobs, Mrs M McEwen, 
R Morgan, J Philip, B Rolfe, D Stallan, G Waller, C Whitbread, Mrs J H Whitehouse and 
J M Whitehouse 
 
 
 
 

A BRIEFING FOR THE CHAIRMAN, VICE-CHAIRMAN AND 
APPOINTED SPOKESPERSONS WILL BE HELD AT 6.30 P.M. IN 
COMMITTEE ROOM 1 ON THE DAY OF THE SUB-COMMITTEE. 

 
 

WEBCASTING/FILMING NOTICE 
 
Please note: this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the 
Council's internet site - at the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or 
part of the meeting is being filmed.  The meeting may also be otherwise filmed by 
third parties with the Chairman’s permission. 
 
You should be aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data Protection 
Act. Data collected during this webcast will be retained in accordance with the 
Council’s published policy. 
 
Therefore by entering the Chamber and using the lower public seating area, you are 
consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound 
recordings for web casting and/or training purposes. If members of the public do not 
wish to have their image captured they should sit in the upper council chamber 



Area Planning Subcommittee East Wednesday, 17 July 2013 
 

2 

public gallery area or otherwise indicate to the Chairman before the start of the 
meeting. 
 
If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Senior Democratic 
Services Officer on 01992 564249. 
 

 1. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION   
 

  1. This meeting is to be webcast. Members are reminded of the need to activate 
their microphones before speaking.  
 
2. The Chairman will read the following announcement: 
 
“I would like to remind everyone present that this meeting will be broadcast live to the 
Internet and will be capable of repeated viewing and copies of the recording could be 
made available for those that request it. 
 
If you are seated in the lower public seating area it is likely that the recording cameras 
will capture your image and this will result in the possibility that your image will 
become part of the broadcast. 
 
This may infringe your human and data protection rights and if you wish to avoid this 
you should move to the upper public gallery” 
 

 2. ADVICE TO PUBLIC AND SPEAKERS AT COUNCIL PLANNING SUB-
COMMITTEES  (Pages 5 - 8) 

 
  General advice to people attending the meeting is attached. 

 
 3. MINUTES  (Pages 9 - 42) 

 
  To confirm the minutes of the last meetings of the Sub-Committee, held on 19 June 

2013 and 1 July 2013 (attached). 
 

 4. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 

 5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 

  (Assistant to the Chief Executive) To declare interests in any item on this agenda. 
 

 6. ANY OTHER BUSINESS   
 

  Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972, together with paragraphs (6) 
and (24) of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution requires that the 
permission of the Chairman be obtained, after prior notice to the Chief Executive, 
before urgent business not specified in the agenda (including a supplementary agenda 
of which the statutory period of notice has been given) may be transacted. 
 
In accordance with Operational Standing Order 6 (non-executive bodies), any item 
raised by a non-member shall require the support of a member of the Committee 
concerned and the Chairman of that Committee.  Two weeks' notice of non-urgent 
items is required. 
 

 7. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL  (Pages 43 - 96) 
 



Area Planning Subcommittee East Wednesday, 17 July 2013 
 

3 

  (Director of Planning and Economic Development)  To consider planning applications 
as set out in the attached schedule 
 
Background Papers: 
 
(i)  Applications for determination – applications listed on the schedule, letters of 
representation received regarding the applications which are summarised on the 
schedule.   
 
(ii)  Enforcement of Planning Control – the reports of officers inspecting the properties 
listed on the schedule in respect of which consideration is to be given to the 
enforcement of planning control. 
 

 8. DELEGATED DECISIONS   
 

  (Director of Planning & Economic Development) Schedules of planning applications 
determined by the Head of Planning & Economic Development under delegated 
powers since the last meeting of the Sub-Committee could be inspected in the 
Members’ Room or on the Planning & Economic Development Information Desk at the 
Civic Offices in Epping. 
 

 9. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS   
 

  Exclusion 
To consider whether, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
public and press should be excluded from the meeting for the items of business set 
out below on grounds that they will involve the likely disclosure of exempt information 
as defined in the following paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act (as 
amended) or are confidential under Section 100(A)(2): 
 

Agenda Item No Subject Exempt Information 
Paragraph Number 

Nil Nil Nil 
 
The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006, which came 
into effect on 1 March 2006, requires the Council to consider whether maintaining the 
exemption listed above outweighs the potential public interest in disclosing the 
information. Any member who considers that this test should be applied to any 
currently exempted matter on this agenda should contact the proper officer at least 24 
hours prior to the meeting. 
 
Confidential Items Commencement 
Paragraph 9 of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution require: 
 
(1) All business of the Council requiring to be transacted in the presence of the 

press and public to be completed by 10.00 p.m. at the latest. 
 
(2) At the time appointed under (1) above, the Chairman shall permit the 

completion of debate on any item still under consideration, and at his or her 
discretion, any other remaining business whereupon the Council shall proceed 
to exclude the public and press. 

 
(3) Any public business remaining to be dealt with shall be deferred until after the 

completion of the private part of the meeting, including items submitted for 
report rather than decision. 



Area Planning Subcommittee East Wednesday, 17 July 2013 
 

4 

 
Background Papers 
Paragraph 8 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules of the Constitution define 
background papers as being documents relating to the subject matter of the report 
which in the Proper Officer's opinion: 
 
(a) disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the 

report is based;  and 
 
(b) have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report and does not 

include published works or those which disclose exempt or confidential 
information (as defined in Rule 10) and in respect of executive reports, the 
advice of any political advisor. 

 
Inspection of background papers may be arranged by contacting the officer 
responsible for the item. 
 

 
 



Advice to Public and Speakers at Council Planning Subcommittees 
 
Are the meetings open to the public? 
 
Yes all our meetings are open for you to attend. Only in special circumstances are the public 
excluded. 
 
When and where is the meeting? 
 
Details of the location, date and time of the meeting are shown at the top of the front page of the 
agenda along with the details of the contact officer and members of the Subcommittee.  
 
Can I speak? 
 
If you wish to speak you must register with Democratic Services by 4.00 p.m. on the day 
before the meeting. Ring the number shown on the top of the front page of the agenda. 
Speaking to a Planning Officer will not register you to speak, you must register with Democratic 
Service. Speakers are not permitted on Planning Enforcement or legal issues. 
 
Who can speak? 
 
Three classes of speakers are allowed: One objector (maybe on behalf of a group), the local 
Parish or Town Council and the Applicant or his/her agent.  
 
Sometimes members of the Council who have a prejudicial interest and would normally withdraw 
from the meeting might opt to exercise their right to address the meeting on an item and then 
withdraw.  
 
Such members are required to speak from the public seating area and address the Sub-
Committee before leaving. 
 
What can I say? 
 
You will be allowed to have your say about the application but you must bear in mind that you are 
limited to three minutes. At the discretion of the Chairman, speakers may clarify matters relating 
to their presentation and answer questions from Sub-Committee members.  
 
If you are not present by the time your item is considered, the Subcommittee will determine the 
application in your absence. 
 
Can I give the Councillors more information about my application or my objection? 
 
Yes you can but it must not be presented at the meeting. If you wish to send further 
information to Councillors, their contact details can be obtained through Democratic Services or 
our website www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk. Any information sent to Councillors should be copied to 
the Planning Officer dealing with your application. 
 
How are the applications considered? 
 
The Subcommittee will consider applications in the agenda order. On each case they will listen to 
an outline of the application by the Planning Officer. They will then hear any speakers’ 
presentations.  
 
The order of speaking will be (1) Objector, (2) Parish/Town Council, then (3) Applicant or his/her 
agent. The Subcommittee will then debate the application and vote on either the 
recommendations of officers in the agenda or a proposal made by the Subcommittee. Should the 

Agenda Item 2

Page 5



Subcommittee propose to follow a course of action different to officer recommendation, they are 
required to give their reasons for doing so. 
 
The Subcommittee cannot grant any application, which is contrary to Local or Structure Plan 
Policy. In this case the application would stand referred to the next meeting of the District 
Development Control Committee. 
 
Further Information? 
 
Can be obtained through Democratic Services or our leaflet ‘Your Choice, Your Voice’ 

Page 6



Area Planning Subcommittee East 2012-13 
Members of the Committee: 
 

  
 
 
 

  
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 

  

Cllr Boyce 

Cllr Waller 

Cllr Brady Cllr Breare-
Hall 

Cllr Gode Cllr Grigg Cllr Jacobs Cllr Jones 

Cllr 
McEwen 

Cllr Morgan Cllr Philip Cllr Rolfe Cllr Stallan 

Cllr 
Whitbread 

Cllr Janet 
Whitehouse 

Cllr Jon 
Whitehouse 

Cllr Avey 

Cllr Keska 

Cllr Church 

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
1 

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL 
COMMITTEE MINUTES 

 
Committee: Area Planning Subcommittee East Date: 19 June 2013  
    
Place: Council Chamber, Civic Offices, 

High Street, Epping 
Time: 7.30  - 10.40 pm 

  
Members 
Present: 

Mrs S Jones (Chairman), P Keska (Vice-Chairman), K Avey, W Breare-Hall, 
Mrs H Brady, T Church, P Gode, Mrs A Grigg, D Jacobs, Mrs M McEwen, 
R Morgan, J Philip, B Rolfe, D Stallan, G Waller, C Whitbread, 
Mrs J H Whitehouse and J M Whitehouse 

  
Other 
Councillors: 

 
  

  
Apologies: A Boyce 
  
Officers 
Present: 

J Shingler (Principal Planning Officer), S G Hill (Senior Democratic Services 
Officer) and P Seager (Webcasting Officer) 
 

  
 

10. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION  
 
The Chairman made a short address to remind all present that the meeting would be 
broadcast on the Internet, and that the Council had adopted a protocol for the 
webcasting of its meetings.  
 

11. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION  
 
The Chairman welcomed members of the public to the meeting and outlined the 
procedures and arrangements adopted by the Council to enable persons to address 
the Sub-Committee, in relation to the determination of applications for planning 
permission. The Sub-Committee noted the advice provided for the public and 
speakers in attendance at Council Planning Sub-Committee meetings. 
 

12. MINUTES  
 

RESOLVED: 
 

That the minutes of the meeting held on 22 May 2013 be taken as read and 
signed by the Chairman as a correct record. 

 
13. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
(a) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillors H Brady and 
R Morgan declared a non-pecuniary interest in the following item of the agenda by 
virtue of knowing the applicant. The Councillors had determined that their interest 
was not prejudicial and that they would remain in the meeting for the consideration of 
the application and voting thereon: 
 
• EPF/0229/13 – Albyns Farm, Albyns Lane, Stapleford Tawney.  

Agenda Item 3

Page 9



Area Planning Subcommittee East  19 June 2013 

2 

 
(b) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor K Avey 
declared a non-pecuniary interest in the following items of the agenda. The 
Councillor had determined that his interest was not prejudicial and that he would 
remain in the meeting for the consideration of the applications and voting thereon: 
 
• EPF/2468/12 – Blunts Farm, Theydon Bois.  
• EPF/0891/13 – 11 Bower Hill, Epping. 

 
(c) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor K Avey 
declared a non-pecuniary interest in the following items of the agenda by virtue of 
being related to the objector. The Councillor had determined that his interest was 
prejudicial and that he would leave the meeting for the consideration of the 
application and voting thereon: 
 
• EPF/0733/13 – 34 Hartland Road, Epping. 
 
(d)  Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillors S Jones and 
J Philip declared a non-pecuniary interest in the following item of the agenda by 
knowing the registered speaker. The Councillors had determined that their interest 
was not prejudicial and that they would remain in the meeting for the consideration of 
the applications and voting thereon: 
 
• EPF/2468/12 – Blunts Farm, Theydon Bois.  
• EPF/0135/13 - 42 Forest Drive, Theydon Bois 
• EPF/0701/13 – Waylands, Market Place, Abridge 
 
(e) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillors W Breare-
Hall and R Church declared a non-pecuniary interest in the following items of the 
agenda by virtue of knowing the objector. The Councillors had determined that their 
interest was not prejudicial and that they would remain in the meeting for the 
consideration of the application and voting thereon: 
 
• EPF/0733/13 – 34 Hartland Road, Epping. 
 
(f) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor C Whitbread 
declared a non-pecuniary interest in the following items of the agenda. The 
Councillor had determined that his interest was prejudicial and that he would leave 
the meeting for the consideration of the application and voting thereon: 
 
• EPF/0891/13 – 11 Bower Hill, Epping. 
 

14. ANY OTHER BUSINESS  
 
It was noted that there was no other urgent business for consideration by the Sub-
Committee. 
 

15. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL  
 

RESOLVED: 
 

That the planning applications numbered 1 – 15 be determined as set out in 
the schedule attached as Appendix 1 to these minutes save items 10, 13 and 
14 which were not considered prior to the meeting being adjourned. 

Page 10



Area Planning Subcommittee East  19 June 2013 

3 

 
16. EPF/0229/13 - ALBYNS FARM, ALBYNS LANE, STAPLEFORD TAWNEY  

 
The Subcommittee considered a supplementary report on a planning application at 
Albyns Farm, Stapleford Tawney. 
 
 Resolved: 
 
 That planning application EPF/-229/13 at Albyns Farm, Stapleford Tawney be 

granted subject to the conditions set in Appendix 2 to these minutes. 
 

17. REQUEST TO DISCHARGE THE OBLIGATION OF A S106 AGREEMENT 
REGARDING CROWN PARK FARM, BOURNEBRIDGE LANE  
 
This item was not considered prior to the adjournment of the meeting. 
 

18. DELEGATED DECISIONS  
 
The Sub-Committee noted that schedules of planning applications determined by the 
Head of Planning and Economic Development under delegated authority since the 
last meeting had been circulated and could be inspected at the Civic Offices. 
 

19. ADJOURNMENT OF MEETING  
 

Resolved: 
 
That the meeting be adjourned at 10.40 pm and be reconvened at a date to 
be agreed with the Chairman of the Subcommittee in order to consider the 
remaining items of business 

 
 
 
 

CHAIRMAN 
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



Appendix 1 
 
Report Item No: 1  
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0461/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Bansons Yard 

High Street 
Ongar 
Essex 
CM5 9AA 
 

PARISH: Ongar 
 

WARD: Chipping Ongar, Greensted and Marden Ash 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Redevelopment of hand car wash site including demolition of 
existing structures and hard standing and erection of 14 no. 
dwellings, including garages, parking, roadway, drainage and 
all ancillary works. 
 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=546793 
 
CONDITIONS  
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: S240-/Sk205 Rev A, SU-0011-12-MAS.04, S240-01 Rev D, 
2415-GMP-01 Rev B, Topographical Survey, SU-0011-12-Gar.01, SU-0011-12-
Gar.02, SU-0011-12-Gar.03, SU-0011-12-Will.01 Rev A, SU-0011-12-Will.02, SU-
0011-12-350/352.01 Rev A, SU-0011-12-350/352.02 Rev B, SU-0011-12-
350/352.03 Rev B, SU-0011-12-350/352.04 Rev A, SU-0011-12-350/352.05 Rev B, 
SU-0011-12MAS.COL.01 Rev F, SU-0011-12-MAS.01 Rev F, SU-0011-12-MAS.02 
Rev B, SU-0011-12-MAS.03 Rev C, SU-0011-12-Pres.01 Rev C and PA518/Sk05 
Rev A 
 

3 No construction works above ground level shall take place until documentary and 
photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details. 
 

4 The development shall be carried out in accordance with the Flood Risk Assessment 
and Drainage Strategy submitted with the application unless otherwise agreed in 
writing with the Local Planning Authority.   
 

5 No development, including works of demolition or site clearance, shall take place 
until a Tree Protection Plan, Arboricultural Method Statement and site monitoring 
schedule in accordance with BS 5837:2012 (Trees in relation to design, demolition 

Minute Item 15

5Page 13



and construction - Recommendations) has been submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority and approved in writing. The development shall be carried out only in 
accordance with the approved documents unless the Local Planning Authority gives 
its written consent to any variation. 
 

6 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work, 
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and 
implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works 
shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as 
appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed 
finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor 
artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above 
and below ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for 
planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules 
of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where 
appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or 
establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any 
replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously 
damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size 
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation. 
 

7 Prior to first occupation of the proposed development, the Developer shall be 
responsible for the provision and implementation of a Residential Travel Information 
Pack for sustainable transport, approved by Essex County Council.  
 

8 No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a 
Construction Method Statement has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, 
the Local Planning Authority. The approved Statement shall be adhered to 
throughout the construction period. The Statement shall provide for: 
 
1. Suitable access arrangements to the application site in connection with the 
demolition/construction operations to include a one way system to prevent vehicles 
conflicting at the access points onto the High Street 
 
2. Wheel washing facilities for the duration of the development to prevent the 
deposition of mud and debris onto the public highway 
 
3.  Turning and off loading facilities for delivery/construction vehicles within the limits 
of the application site together with an adequate parking area for those employed in 
developing the site. 
 
4.  Storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development within the 
site. 
 
5.  The erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative displays 
and facilities for public viewing, where appropriate. 
 
6. Measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction. 
 
 
7.  A scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition and 
construction works. 
 

6 Page 14



8.  A routing agreement detailing proposed routes of vehicles making deliveries to 
the site. 
 
9. Details for the method of constructing the biodiversity lagoon and means of 
protecting the Protected Horse Chestnut Tree on the adjacent land.   
 

9 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 08.00 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 

10 No development or preliminary groundwork's of any kind shall take place until the 
applicant has secured the implementation of a programme of archaeological work in 
accordance with a written scheme of investigation which has been submitted by the 
applicant and approved in writing by the Planning Authority. 
 

11 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 as amended (or any other Order revoking, further 
amending or re-enacting that Order) no porches at all, no extensions/enlargements 
to the houses hereby approved that are more than 4m high and no outbuildings 
within their curtilage, generally permitted by virtue of Classes A, B, D, E of Part 1, 
Schedule 2 to the Order and installation of microgeneration equipment generally 
permitted by Classes A, B, H and I of Part 40, Schedule 2 to the Order shall be 
undertaken without the prior written permission of the Local Planning Authority. 
 

12 No development shall take place until a Phase 1 Land Contamination investigation 
has been carried out. A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before commencement of the 
Phase 1 investigation. The completed Phase 1 report shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of any 
necessary Phase 2 investigation. The report shall assess potential risks to present 
and proposed humans, property including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland 
and service lines and pipes, adjoining land, groundwaters and surface waters, 
ecological systems, archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the 
investigation must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment 
Agency's "Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", 
or any subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance.  
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the Phase 2 site investigation condition 
that follows] 
 

13 Should the Phase 1 Land Contamination preliminary risk assessment carried out 
under the above condition identify the presence of potentially unacceptable risks, no 
development shall take place until a Phase 2 site investigation has been carried out. 
A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority before commencement of the Phase 2 investigation. The 
completed Phase 2 investigation report, together with any necessary outline 
remediation options, shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to any redevelopment or remediation works being carried out. The 
report shall assess potential risks to present and proposed humans, property 
including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and service lines and pipes, 
adjoining land, groundwaters and surface waters, ecological systems, 
archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the investigation must be 
conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's "Model 

7Page 15



Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", or any 
subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance.  
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the remediation scheme condition that 
follows] 
 

14 Should Land Contamination Remediation Works be identified as necessary under 
the above condition, no development shall take place until a detailed remediation 
scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved remediation 
scheme unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
remediation scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation 
objectives and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management 
procedures and any necessary long term maintenance and monitoring programme. 
The scheme must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under 
Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 or any subsequent version, in 
relation to the intended use of the land after remediation.  
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the verification report condition that 
follows] 
 

15 Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme 
and prior to the first use or occupation of the development, a verification report that 
demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced 
together with any necessary monitoring and maintenance programme and copies of 
any waste transfer notes relating to exported and imported soils shall be submitted 
to the Local Planning Authority for approval in writing. The approved monitoring and 
maintenance programme shall be implemented.  
 

16 In the event that any evidence of potential contamination is found at any time when 
carrying out the approved development that was not previously identified in the 
approved Phase 2 report, it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local 
Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in 
accordance with a methodology previously approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation 
scheme, a verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in 
writing of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with the immediately above 
condition.   
 

17 No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a lighting 
scheme for all outside lighting for the development is submitted to, and agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority and the development shall be implemented in 
accordance with such agreed details. 
 

18 Before any preparatory, demolition or construction works commence on site a full 
survey and mitigation strategy for the whole site shall be carried out and submitted 
to the Local Planning Authority, with a working methodology for site clearance and 
construction work to minimise impact to any protected species.  Development shall 
be undertaken only in accordance with the agreed methodology and strategy. 
 

19 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town & Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 (or of any equivalent provision in any Statutory Instrument 
revoking or re-enacting that Order), the garages hereby approved shall be retained 
so that they are capable of allowing the parking of cars together with any ancillary 

8 Page 16



storage in connection with the residential use of the site, and shall at no time be 
converted into a room or used for any other purpose. 

20 No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until additional 
details of the proposed crib wall together with details of landscaping and its 
implementation within 3m of the wall are submitted to, and agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority and the development shall be implemented in accordance 
with such agreed details.   
 

21 No infiltration of surface water drainage into the ground is permitted other than with 
the express written consent of the local planning authority, which may be given for 
those parts of the site where it has been demonstrated that there is no resultant 
unacceptable risk to controlled waters. The development shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approval details.  
 

22 No development hereby approved shall take place until measures to enable the 
provision of education improvements to the local area, necessitated by this 
development, are secured.  
 

 

9Page 17



Report Item No: 2 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2343/12 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Stone Hall 

Downhall Road 
Matching Green 
Harlow 
Essex 
CM17 0RA 
 

PARISH: Matching 
 

WARD: Hastingwood, Matching and Sheering Village 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Demolition of existing timber construction Use Class B1 units 
and replace with new Use Class B1 units and 6 no. 3 
bedroom cottages. 
 

DECISION: Refer to District Development Control Committee 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=543982 
 
Members voted on the recommendation to grant consent and this was lost.  Subsequently 5 
members stood to refer the application to the District Development Control Committee and it was 
agreed to refer the application with a recommendation to refuse permission as no very special 
circumstances were apparent that would justify the residential element of the scheme. 
 

10 Page 18



Report Item No: 3 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2468/12 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Blunts Farm  

Coopersale Lane  
Theydon Bois  
Epping  
Essex 
CM16 7NT 
 

PARISH: Theydon Bois 
 

WARD: Passingford 
 
Theydon Bois 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Demolition of existing buildings comprising a dwelling house 
and agricultural / commercial buildings and the partial 
demolition of agricultural / commercial buildings, removal of 
areas of hard standing and the erection of four dwelling 
houses, access works, associated landscaping, drainage, 
infrastructure and ancillary developments. 
 

DECISION: Refuse Permission  
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=544447 
 
REASONS FOR REFUSAL 
 
 

1 The proposed development is inappropriate within the Metropolitan Green Belt and 
no very special circumstances exist sufficient to outweigh the harm that would result, 
contrary to policy GB2A of the Adopted Local Plan and Alterations and the policies 
of the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 

2 Due to the height and design of the development and its position on open rising 
land, the proposed dwellings will be visually prominent and intrusive within the rural 
landscape and harmful to the rural character and openness of the area, contrary to 
GB7A, CP2 and LL2 of the Adopted Local Plan and Alterations.  In addition it will be 
visually intrusive at night in an area that is otherwise dark, contrary to the Theydon 
Bois Village Design Statement, Dark Skies Policy. 
 

3 The proposed development is poorly located with regard to access by pedestrians 
and cyclists or by public transport and is relatively remote from services and 
employment opportunities.  As such, the proposal is not considered to be 
sustainable development and is contrary to policies CP1, CP3, ST1 and ST2 and the 
principles of the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 

11Page 19



Report Item No: 4 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0135/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 42 Forest Drive 

Theydon Bois 
Epping 
Essex 
CM16 7EZ 
 

PARISH: Theydon Bois 
 

WARD: Theydon Bois 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Amended application for side and rear extension - 
incorporating a 0.6m reduction in the front projection of the 
proposed side extension (close to boundary with no.40) and a 
0.6m reduction in the front projection of the existing flat roofed 
extension (close to boundary with no.44) 
 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=545155 
 
The planning officer drew Members attention to one additional letter of support from No 29 Forest 
Drive 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development, shall 
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 

3 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 as amended (or any other order revoking, further 
amending or re-enacting that order) no development generally permitted by virtue of 
Part 1, Classes A, B, and C, shall be undertaken without the prior written permission 
of the Local Planning Authority. 
 

 

12 Page 20



Report Item No: 5 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0402/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Mellstock 

Dunmow Road 
Fyfield 
Ongar 
Essex 
CM5 0NN 
 

PARISH: Fyfield 
 

WARD: Moreton and Fyfield 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Two storey front extension. 
 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=546452 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development, shall 
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 

 

13Page 21



Report Item No: 6 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0655/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Mulberry House  

Chelmsford Road  
High Ongar  
Essex 
CM5 9NL 
 

PARISH: High Ongar 
 

WARD: High Ongar, Willingale and the Rodings 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Temporary erection of marquee until end of September 2014. 
 

DECISION: Refuse Permission 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=547614 
 
Members were advised that the applicants had advised that they were not willing to be bound by 
Condition 3 (hours of use) as wedding functions could overrun.  The officer advised that in her 
view, Condition 3 was not strictly necessary provided condition 2 remained in place and the 
recommendation remained to grant.  The application was refused for the following reasons: 
 
REASONS FOR REFUSAL 
 

1 The marquee is inappropriate development harmful to the openness of the Green 
Belt and there are no very special circumstances sufficient to outweigh the harm 
from the development.  The proposal is therefore contrary to the National Planning 
Policy Framework and policy GB2A of the adopted Local Plan and Alterations. 
 

2 The marquee, due to its siting and design is harmful to the setting of the adjacent 
Grade II listed building, contrary to policy HC12 of the adopted Local Plan and 
Alterations and the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 

3 The use of the marquee will lead to noise and disturbance, harmful to residential 
amenity, contrary to policy DBE2 of the adopted Local Plan and Alterations. 

 

14 Page 22



Report Item No: 7 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0701/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Waylands  

Market Place  
Abridge  
Romford  
Essex 
RM4 1UA 
 

PARISH: Lambourne 
 

WARD: Lambourne 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Two storey rear extension and alteration works. 
 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=547870 
 
CONDITIONS  
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development, shall 
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 

3 All construction materials shall be stored within the site during the construction 
period. 
 

4 Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, the proposed first floor 
window openings in the flank elevations shall be entirely fitted with obscured glass 
and have fixed frames to a height of 1.7 metres above the floor of the room in which 
the window is installed and shall be permanently retained in that condition. 
 

5 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 08.00 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 

 
 

15Page 23



Report Item No: 8 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0733/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 34 Hartland Road  

Epping  
Essex  
CM16 4PE 
 

PARISH: Epping 
 

WARD: Epping Hemnall 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Loft extension to create bedroom by raising the ridge level 
with front and rear dormer windows. 
 

DECISION: Deferred 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=548071 
 
Members deferred decision on this application for a Member site visit to assess the visual impact 
of the proposal. 

16 Page 24



Report Item No: 9 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0741/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Rear of 9 & 10 Vicarage Lane East 

North Weald Bassett 
Epping 
Essex 
CM16 6ET 
 

PARISH: North Weald Bassett 
 

WARD: North Weald Bassett 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Proposed detached house with garage. (Revised application) 
 

DECISION: Refuse Permission  
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=548112 
 
 
The officer referred to 3 letters from neighbours reiterating their original concerns following 
consultation on the amended plans.  These were from 2 Bluemans, 4 Bluemans and 7 Hows 
Mead.  In addition the Parish Council had confirmed that their concerns remain unchanged.  The 
application was refused for the following reasons: 
 
REASONS FOR REFUSAL 
 
 

1 The proposed dwelling due to its size, height, design and siting, forward of the 
building line of Bluemans, is out of keeping with the street scene and harmful to the 
character and amenity of the area, contrary to policies CP7 and DBE1 of the 
adopted Local Plan and Alterations. 
 

2 The proposed dwelling due to its position in relation to the boundary with No. 2 
Bluemans, and its excessive height and bulk would lead to a loss of light and outlook 
to a side facing habitable room window in that property, which would cause 
excessive loss of residential amenity, contrary to policy DBE9 of the adopted Local 
Plan and Alterations. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

17Page 25



Report Item No: 10 - This item was not discussed due to time constraints 
 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0754/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 134 - 136 High Street 

Epping 
Essex 
CM16 4AG 
 

PARISH: Epping 
 

WARD: Epping Hemnall 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Change of use of 1st floor office space to residential and 
extension at 1st floor level (rear of no.136 High Street) to 
create a total of 5 new flats. Replacement of escape/parking 
access external staircase. (Revised application) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=548191 
 
 

18 Page 26



Report Item No: 11 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0760/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Threshers 

Hobbs Cross Road 
Matching 
Harlow 
Essex 
CM17 0NP 
 

PARISH: Matching 
 

WARD: Hastingwood, Matching and Sheering Village 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Two storey side/front extensions, two storey plus basement 
rear extension, replacement porch, orangery and external 
alterations. (Amended application to EPF/1183/05) 
 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=548231 
 
CONDITIONS  
 
 

1 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development, shall 
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 

 

19Page 27



Report Item No: 12 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0816/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 26 Springfield Close 

Ongar 
Essex 
CM5 0BB 
 

PARISH: Ongar 
 

WARD: Shelley 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Two storey side and rear extension, first floor front extension 
and dormer in a loft conversion. 
 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=548532 
 
CONDITIONS 
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development, shall 
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 

3 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 08.00 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 

 
 

20 Page 28



Report Item No: 13 - This item was not discussed due to time constraints 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0825/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Unit 3c 

The Maltings 
Station Road 
Sheering 
Harlow 
Essex 
CM21 9JX 
 

PARISH: Sheering 
 

WARD: Lower Sheering 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Change of use from laundrette to a take away and sit-in Pie 
and Mash shop and decking with seating. 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=548570 
 

21Page 29



Report Item No: 14- This item was not discussed due to time constraints 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0892/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Unit 3c 

The Maltings 
Station Road 
Sheering 
Harlow 
Essex 
CM21 9JX 
 

PARISH: Sheering 
 

WARD: Lower Sheering 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Grade II listed building consent for change of use from 
laundrette to a take away and sit in Pie and Mash shop and 
decking with seating. 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=548930 
 
 

22 Page 30



Report Item No: 15 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0891/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 11 Bower Hill 

Epping 
Essex 
CM16 7AD 
 

PARISH: Epping 
 

WARD: Epping Hemnall 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Demolition of existing bungalow and erection of a new chalet 
bungalow and alterations to existing crossover. (Revised 
application) 
 

DECISION: Refuse Permission  
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=548914 
 
The Officer referred to 2 additional objections received: 1 from The Epping Society and 1 from no 
16 Bower Court which raised concerns similar to those of other objectors.  The application was 
refused for the following reasons: 
 
REASONS FOR REFUSAL 
 
 

1 The proposed dwelling, due to its bulk, massing and design would be over dominant 
and out of keeping with, and harmful to the street scene, and the visual amenity of 
the area, contrary to policies CP7 and DBE1 of the adopted Local Plan and 
Alterations. 
 

 

23Page 31



24

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 32



Appendix 2 
 

 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0229/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Albyns Farm 

Albyns Lane 
Stapleford Tawney 
Romford 
Essex 
RM4 1RS 
 

PARISH: Stapleford Abbotts 
 

WARD: Passingford 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: New high welfare dairy cow housing, replacing some existing 
livestock buildings 
 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=545530 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 
 

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: AlbynsFarm_010.dwg, AlbynsFarm_0.11.dwg, 
AlbynsFarm_0.12.dwg, AlbynsFarm_0.13.dwg, AlbynsFarm_0.14.dwg 
 
 

3 No construction works above ground level shall take place until documentary and 
photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details. 
 
 
 

4 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work, 
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and 
implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works 
shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as 
appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed 
finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor 
artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above 
and below ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for 
planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules 
of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where 

Minute Item 16

25Page 33



appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or 
establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any 
replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously 
damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size 
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

26 Page 34



 
 
 
1 

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL 
COMMITTEE MINUTES 

 
Committee: Area Planning Subcommittee East Date: 1 July 2013  
    
Place: Council Chamber, Civic Offices, 

High Street, Epping 
Time: 7.30  - 8.35 pm 

  
Members 
Present: 

Mrs S Jones (Chairman), P Keska (Vice-Chairman), K Avey, A Boyce, 
T Church, P Gode, D Jacobs, J Philip, D Stallan, G Waller, C Whitbread, 
Mrs J H Whitehouse and J M Whitehouse 

  
Other 
Councillors: 

 
  

  
Apologies: Mrs H Brady, Mrs A Grigg, Mrs M McEwen and R Morgan 
  
Officers 
Present: 

S G Hill (Senior Democratic Services Officer), P Seager (Webcast Officer) 
and J Shingler (Principal Planning Officer) 
 

  
 

20. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION  
 
The Chairman made a short address to remind all present that the meeting would be 
broadcast on the Internet, and that the Council had adopted a protocol for the 
webcasting of its meetings. 
 

21. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION  
 
The Chairman welcomed members of the public to the meeting and outlined the 
procedures and arrangements adopted by the Council to enable persons to address 
the Sub-Committee, in relation to the determination of applications for planning 
permission. The Sub-Committee noted the advice provided for the public and 
speakers in attendance at Council Planning Sub-Committee meetings. 
 

22. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
(a) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor K Avey 
declared a non-pecuniary interest in the following items of the agenda by virtue of 
being related to the objector. The Councillor had determined that his interest was 
prejudicial and that he would leave the meeting for the consideration of the 
application and voting thereon: 
 
• EPF/0733/13 – 34 Hartland Road, Epping. 
 
(b) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor J H 
Whitehouse declared a non-pecuniary interest in the following item of the agenda by 
virtue of being a member of the Epping Society. The Councillor had determined that 
her interest was not prejudicial and that she would remain in the meeting for the 
consideration of the applications and voting thereon: 
 
• EPF/0754/13 – 134-136 High Street, Epping. 

Page 35



Area Planning Subcommittee East  1 July 2013 

2 

 
23. ANY OTHER BUSINESS  

 
It was noted that the Chairman had admitted a further item of business for 
consideration by the Sub-Committee, namely the site at 34 Hartland Road, which had 
been deferred from the meeting held on 19 June 2013. 
 

24. EPF/0733/13 - 34 HARTLAND ROAD, EPPING - LOFT EXTENSION TO CREATE 
BEDROOM BY RAISING THE RIDGE LEVEL WITH FRONT AND REAR DORMER 
WINDOWS  
 
The committee considered and approved an application for extensions to 34 Hartland 
Road, Epping. 
 
 Resolved: 
 

That planning application EPF/0733/13 at 34 Hartland Road, Epping be 
granted subject to the conditions set out in Appendix 1 to these minutes. 

 
25. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL  

 
Resolved: 

 
That the planning applications numbered 10, 13 and 14 be determined 
as set out in the schedule attached as Appendix 2 to these minutes. 

 
 

26. REQUEST TO DISCHARGE THE OBLIGATION OF A S106 AGREEMENT 
REGARDING CROWN PARK FARM, BOURNEBRIDGE LANE  
 
The Subcommittee consider and approved a request to discharge the obligation of a 
Section 106 agreement that required that an outbuilding be used only for agricultural 
storage at Crown Park Farm, Bournebridge Lane.  It was approved on the basis that 
in April 2013 a certificate of lawful development application was lodged which 
provided satisfactory evidence that the outbuilding had been used for domestic 
purposes (incidental to the house on the site) for more than 10 years. A certificate of 
lawfulness for this domestic use had been issued on 6 June 2013. 
 

Resolved: 
 
That the Section 106 requirement on the building at Crown Park Farm, 
Bournebridge Lane be discharged, and the Land Charges section be 
requested to remove it from the local land charge register. 

 
27. DELEGATED DECISIONS  

 
The Sub-Committee noted that schedules of planning applications determined by the 
Head of Planning and Economic Development under delegated authority since the 
last meeting had been circulated and could be inspected at the Civic Offices. 
 

 
 
 

CHAIRMAN 
 

Page 36



���������	�
�

APPLICATION No: EPF/0733/13 
 

SITE ADDRESS: 34 Hartland Road  
Epping  
Essex  
CM16 4PE 
 

PARISH: Epping 
 

WARD: Epping Hemnall 
 

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL: 

Loft extension to create bedroom by raising the ridge level 
with front and rear dormer windows. 
 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=548071 
 
CONDITIONS  
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development, shall 
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 

3 No development, including works of demolition or site clearance, shall take place 
until a Tree Protection Plan, Arboricultural Method Statement and site monitoring 
schedule in accordance with BS 5837:2012 (Trees in relation to design, demolition 
and construction - Recommendations) has been submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority and approved in writing. The development shall be carried out only in 
accordance with the approved documents unless the Local Planning Authority gives 
its written consent to any variation. 
 

4 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 08.00 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
�

Minute Item 24

3Page 37



4

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 38



Appendix 2 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0754/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 134 - 136 High Street 

Epping 
Essex 
CM16 4AG 
 

PARISH: Epping 
 

WARD: Epping Hemnall 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Change of use of 1st floor office space to residential and 
extension at 1st floor level (rear of no.136 High Street) to 
create a total of 5 new flats. Replacement of escape/parking 
access external staircase. (Revised application) 
 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=548191 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development, shall 
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 

3 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings No's: 1, 2A, 3A.  
 

4 Prior to first occupation of the proposed development, the Developer shall be 
responsible for the provision and implementation of a Residential Travel Information 
Pack for sustainable transport, approved by Essex County Council, to include six 
one day travel vouchers for use with the relevant local public transport operator. 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

Minute Item 25

5Page 39



Report Item No: 13 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0825/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Unit 3c 

The Maltings 
Station Road 
Sheering 
Harlow 
Essex 
CM21 9JX 
 

PARISH: Sheering 
 

WARD: Lower Sheering 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Change of use from laundrette to a take away and sit-in Pie 
and Mash shop and decking with seating. 
 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=548570 
 
CONDITIONS  
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: Land Registry Location Plan title number EX265458, Floor 
Plan date stamped 29/04/13 
 

2 The premises shall be used solely for A3 and/or A5 use and for no other purpose 
(including any other purpose in Class A of the Schedule to the Town & Country 
Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (as amended), or in any provision equivalent to 
that Class in any Statutory Instrument revoking or re-enacting that Order. 
 

 
 

6 Page 40



Report Item No: 14 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0892/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Unit 3c 

The Maltings 
Station Road 
Sheering 
Harlow 
Essex 
CM21 9JX 
 

PARISH: Sheering 
 

WARD: Lower Sheering 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Grade II listed building consent for change of use from 
laundrette to a take away and sit in Pie and Mash shop and 
decking with seating. 
 

DECISION: Grant Permission (with conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=548930 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: Land Registry Location Plan title number EX265458, Floor 
Plan date stamped 29/04/13 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7Page 41



8

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 42



AREA PLANS SUB-COMMITTEE ‘EAST’ 
Date 17 July 2013 

INDEX OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS/ENFORCEMENT CASES 

 
 

ITEM REFERENCE SITE LOCATION OFFICER 
RECOMMENDATION 

PAGE 

1 EPF/0223/13 
 

Brook Cottage 
Mutton Row 
Stanford Rivers 
Ongar 

Refuse Permission  
(Householder) 

45 

2 EPF/0553/13 
 

Land adjoining Broadlawns 
Coopersale Lane  
Theydon Bois  

Prior Approval 
Required and 

Granted 

49 

3 EPF/0688/13 
 

151-153 Millrite Engineering  
London Road  
Stanford Rivers  
Ongar  

Refuse Permission 54 

4 EPF/0900/13 
 

Mickleham 
Theydon Road 
Epping 

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 

63 

5 EPF/0916/13 
 

3a Hemnall Street 
Epping 

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 

67 

6 EPF/0917/13 
 

Copped Hall Garden Nursery 
High Road 
Epping 

Refuse Permission 76 

7 EPF/1043/13 
 

Great Notts  
Moreton Road  
Ongar 

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 

84 

8 EPF/1082/13 
 

2 Elm Gardens 
North Weald 
Epping 

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 

90 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 43



Page 44

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
Report Item No: 1 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0223/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Brook Cottage 

Mutton Row 
Stanford Rivers 
Ongar 
Essex 
 

PARISH: Stanford Rivers 
 

WARD: Passingford 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Tim Gray 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Proposed two storey and single storey side extensions, 
dormers and porch. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Refuse Permission  (Householder) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=545503 
 
REASON FOR REFUSAL 
 
 

1 The proposed additions, by reason of their bulk and position, would result in a 
disproportionate enlargement of the dwelling. The proposal therefore represents 
inappropriate development which would cause harm to the open character of the 
Green Belt, contrary to policy GB2A of the adopted Local Plan and Alterations, and 
also contrary to the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 

2 The proposed additions, by reason of their bulk and position, would result in a 
dwelling that would dominate the listed building on the site. The proposal  would 
therefore detract from the setting of a listed building contrary to policy HC12 of the 
adopted Local Plan and Alterations, and contrary to the National Planning Policy 
Framework.  

 
 
 
This application is before this Committee since it has been ‘called in’ by Councillor Heather Brady - 
(pursuant to the constitution, part three: planning directorate – delegation of council function, 
schedule 1, appendix A (h).   
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
Proposed two storey and single storey side extensions.  
  
Description of Site: 
 

Page 45



2 storey dwelling located in an isolated and rural location within the Green Belt. It also stands 
within the curtilage of a listed building.  
  
Relevant History:  
 
EPF/839/93 gave approval to the erection of an dwelling to replace the existing listed dwelling on 
the site which had been subject to flood damage.  
 
Policies Applied: 
 
GB2A - Development in the Green Belt.            
DBE9 – Loss of amenity 
DBE10 – Residential extensions 
HC12 – Development affecting the setting of listed buildings 
LL10 – Adequacy of provision for landscape retention. 
National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
Summary of Representations: 
 
STANFORD RIVERS PARISH COUNCIL – No objections.  
  
NEIGHBOURS – there are no neighbours and no response to site notice. 
 
EFDC CONSERVATON OFFICER – The replacement Brook Cottage built in the early 1990’s 
occupies the same footprint as the original cottage, and a condition withdrew permitted 
development rights so as to protect the open character of the Green Belt - and to ensure the new 
dwelling remained of equal status to the original dwelling and did not dominate its setting. The 
replacement dwelling was allowed under exceptional circumstances, so any substantial extensions 
or additions should be viewed critically. In addition a development of this kind would not normally 
have been allowed in the curtilage of a listed building like Brook Cottage, so its presence on the 
site should not be accentuated by substantially increasing its volume. Although there are no 
objections to the principle of extending the property to a lesser degree, the proposed extensions 
will have a detrimental impact on the setting of the listed cottage by increasing its dominance on 
the site. A smaller side extension, or as the listed buildings advisor has suggested, an extension to 
the north which faces away from the listed cottage, may be acceptable. 
  
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
In 1993 planning permission was approved for a new dwelling to be erected in the north part of this 
site to replace a listed cottage in the south of the site. The listed cottage was extensively damaged 
by flooding owing to its position close to a stream, and the Council agreed that exceptional 
circumstances warranted the erection of a new dwelling on higher land further away from the 
stream. The former cottage was to be retained as an outbuilding for the new dwelling. 
 
The newer dwelling has a similar footprint to the original cottage. However, the current proposal 
provides for one and two storey side extensions which increase the floorspace of the house by 
63%. The proposed side wings will significantly add to the bulk and width of the house and they 
represent a disproportionate addition to a dwelling which would detract from the open character of 
the Green Belt. 
 
The size and footprint of the new dwelling allowed in the 1993 was similar to the original listed 
cottage on the site. As set out above the Conservation officer feels that the proposed extensions 
are too large, that they will dominate the appearance of the site and at the same time demote the 
original cottage in its setting.  

Page 46



 
Is there a way forward?  A revised application proposing a smaller side extension, and/or a rear 
extension which would face away from the listed building, would be more likely to be acceptable.  
 
Conclusions: 
 
The proposed extensions, by reason of their size and position, do not represent a limited extension 
to a house in the Green Belt and they would detract from the open character of the Green Belt. 
Additionally the extensions would detract from the setting of the original listed dwelling on the site. 
For these reasons, and those set out elsewhere in the report above, it is recommended that 
planning permission be refused. 
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: David Baker 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564514 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 

Page 47



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

50.3m

48.8m

49.4m

49.4m

50.9m

Brook Cottage

M
U

TTO
N

 R
O

W

Pond

P a
t h  

( u m
)

FB

T ra c k

P a t h  ( u m )

P a
t h 

( um
)

Tr ack

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee East 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

1 

Application Number: EPF/0223/13 
Site Name: Brook Cottage, Mutton Row, Stanford 

Rivers, CM5 9QQ 
Scale of Plot: 1/2500 

Page 48



 Report Item No: 2 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0553/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Land adjoining Broadlawns 

Coopersale Lane  
Theydon Bois  
Essex  
CM16 7NP 
 

PARISH: Theydon Bois 
 

WARD: Theydon Bois 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Richard Axon 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Agricultural determination for storage building (further details 
submitted) 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Prior Approval Required and Granted 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=547210 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The building hereby granted prior approval shall not be used for the sale of 
Christmas trees to persons visiting the site. 
 
 

2 No development, including works of demolition or site clearance, shall take place 
until a Tree Protection Plan, Arboricultural Method Statement and site monitoring 
schedule in accordance with BS 5837:2012 (Trees in relation to design, demolition 
and construction - Recommendations) has been submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority and approved in writing. The development shall be carried out only in 
accordance with the approved documents unless the Local Planning Authority gives 
its written consent to any variation. 
 
 

 
 
 
This application is before this Committee since the recommendation to grant approval is contrary 
to an objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal - 
(pursuant to the constitution, part three: planning directorate – delegation of council function, 
schedule 1, appendix A (g).   
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
Prior approval determination for erection of storage building. – this barn building is to be  used for 
storage of tools, a small tractor, chemicals, and tree stakes in connection with a forestry business 
ie growing of Christmas trees.    
  
 

Page 49



Description of Site: 
 
The south west corner of a field located on the north side of Coopersale Lane. There is a vehicular 
access to the field in this south west corner, and an access track leads down the west side of the 
field. The field lies in the Green Belt and preserved trees lie close to the site of the proposed 
storage building. Part of the field has recently been planted with Christmas trees 
  
Relevant History:  
 
EPF/423/10 was a refusal of planning permission for loose boxes and stable in this south west 
corner, and an appeal against this refusal was dismissed. 
 
EPF/2390/12 concerned another agricultural determination for a barn building in the north east 
corner of the sire. Prior approval for this building was refused owing to the environmental impact 
an access road across the field would have had, possible adverse affect on preserved trees, 
creation of a vehicular access gap in a protected hedgerow, and inappropriate siting of the building 
in relation to the agricultural unit as a whole.  
 
Policies Applied: 
 
GB11 – Agricultural buildings           
LL4 – Agricultural/Forestry related development. 
National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
Summary of Representations: 
 
THEYDON BOIS PARISH COUNCIL – This is one of a long line of applications refused on this 
site. The key point is that the proposal once again constitutes  inappropriate development in the 
Green Belt. This field has open views across the village to Epping Forest and the proposal would 
impact on openness. We still have concerns about highway safety. Our objection is supported by 
the dismissal of the appeal against refusal of the stables application EPF/423/10 which included 
reasons such as ‘significant harm to the openness of the Green Belt’….’as a result of the loss of 
openness/views across to Theydon Bois’.  
  
NEIGHBOURS – three letters received:-  
 
7, WOODLAND WAY – object – contrary to what is stated in the application this field has not been 
used for agriculture for 30 years, and hence the proposed building is not reasonably necessary for 
agricultural purposes. In addition the proposed building could be better located elsewhere in this 
13.49 hectare ‘agricultural unit;’ some of which is in Abridge. It has been noted however, that there 
is evidence of Christmas tree planting in the last few months. The building would affect openness, 
and the vehicular access to Coopersale Lane is poor with blind bends posing a threat to road 
safety. The application appears part of an ongoing history of attempts to erect a building on this 
site. In any event the conditions relating to permitted development have not been met since the 
proposed building is not on agricultural land .. and not in use for agriculture for the purposes of a 
trade or business and is not reasonably necessary for the purposes of agriculture within the unit. 
 
THEYDON BOIS AND DISTRICT RURAL PRESERVATION SOCIETY – object – we understand 
that this field is only a small part of this land holding the major part being in Abridge, and the 
building should be relocated to this larger part of the unit . Vehicular access on to Coopersale 
Lane is blind and dangerous  - which was a reason why previous applications have been refused, 
and transfer of Christmas trees in this position would be dangerous. 
 
THEYDON BOIS ACTION GROUP - object – they raise similar concerns as raised in the letter 
from 7, Woodland Way - and that the strict criteria of the General Development Order have not 

Page 50



been met eg the larger area of land in Abridge is 1.75 miles away and hence the unit does not 
have an area of 5 hectares, and the fields in Abridge are not in use for agricultural purposes. The 
building is not reasonably necessary because there are redundant agricultural buildings at the 
adjacent Blunts Farm - the lack of use of which was referred to by their owner in a recent 
application for their demolition to make way for 5 houses – and this application was refused so 
these buildings are still available for renting. The proposed building would compromise the integrity 
of the historic protected Coopersale Lane, and as stated by the planning inspector in previous 
appeals the access is unsuitable. This is an inappropriate site for this new building and if 
reasonably necessary the building should be sited at Abridge.  
 
EFDC TREES AND LANDSAPE SECTION – The submitted tree report demonstrates that the 
proposal could be implemented without a detrimental impact on the preserved trees on the site. 
We have no objection subject to Condition no.66  (requiring details of tree protection) being 
imposed. 
  
Issues and Considerations: 
 
Agricultural or Forestry buildings normally fall within permitted development but before they can be 
built they need to be subject of a prior approval determination with the local planning authority. 
This procedure allows for a local planning authority to determine whether the siting and 
appearance of the proposed building is acceptable, and no other issues, including the principle of 
why the building is required, can be taken into account. 28 days is the normal time allowed for a 
council to issue its decision. However, if a council decide that further details are required to assist 
them in making a decision, then a further 56 days is available once the details are submitted. In 
this particular case, because the proposed building lies close to preserved trees, further details 
were required to in order to assess whether the proposal would impact on the health of these 
preserved trees. 
 
The proposed building is modest in size, measuring 3.66m in width by 11m in length, and 3.78m to 
eaves. Its walls would be timber clad with a low angled pitched (fibre  cement) roof. Not only is it a 
smaller building than the previously rejected application EPF/2390/12, it is located close to the 
existing vehicular access into this field (and the adjoining field to the north) and hence a new 
vehicular access on to Coopersale Lane, and track across the fields, is not required. The further 
details submitted have been assessed by the Councils Trees and Landscape section and as 
stated above they feel that the proposal building can be built without a detrimental impact on the 
trees. They therefore raise no objections subject to a tree protection condition being imposed. The 
existence of screening trees close to the building, and its position close to the corner of the field, 
will ensure that the building is not unduly conspicuous, and in terms of its siting and appearance it 
is acceptable. 
 
Other issues and comments on representations received 
 
Part of this field has recently been planted with Christmas trees and the building is required to 
house equipment related to this use, and permitted development rights for this forestry business 
are the same as they are for agricultural uses. Part of the agricultural unit associated with this field 
lies on the other side of Coopersale Lane and part also within Abridge. Government guidance 
does state that a separate or second agricultural enterprise can be established within a larger 
agricultural unit and hence the use of this field for a forestry use is one for which permitted 
development rights do apply. As such only the siting and appearance of the proposed building can 
be taken into account -  and not whether it represents inappropriate development in the Green 
Belt, which was one reason why the stables building under EPF/423/10 was refused and 
dismissed on appeal. 
 
The concern of objectors that this is another attempt to get a building on this site is acknowledged. 
However, the regulations are clear that buildings approved under this agricultural prior approval 

Page 51



procedure can only be used for agricultural or forestry purposes, and they stipulate that if an 
agricultural or forestry use ceases within 10 years of the building’s completion then the building 
must be removed. In addition the existence of redundant farm buildings on the adjoining site of 
Blunts farm is not a justifiable reason to refuse prior approval for the proposed building – since it is 
related to a different agricultural unit and enterprise. 
 
Conditions can be imposed on any prior approval granted for this building. It is agreed that the 
vehicular access suffers from poor visibility sight lines, and in this context it would be undesirable 
for the proposed building to be used for the retail sale of Christmas trees grown on the site. To this 
end a condition prohibiting retail sales of Christmas trees from the building is proposed.  
 
Conclusions: 
 
Ancillary buildings related to agriculture or forestry uses assist in ensuring that associated large 
areas of land are retained in an open character. The siting and appearance of the proposed 
building, which is of a modest size, is acceptable, and it does appear to be reasonably required for 
a fledgling forestry business. It is recommended therefore that prior approval for the proposed 
building be granted, subject to conditions, prohibiting retail sales of Christmas trees from the 
building, and requiring tree protection details to be submitted before any works commence. 
  
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: David Baker 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564514 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 

Page 52



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

76.2m
Spring House

The Marcris

Broadlawn

C O
O P

E R
S A

L E
 L

A N
E

Pond

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee East 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

2 
Application Number: EPF/0553/13 
Site Name: Land adjoining Broadlawns, Coopersale 

Lane, Theydon Bois, CM16 7NP 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 

Page 53



Report Item No: 3 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0688/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 151-153 Millrite Engineering  

London Road  
Stanford Rivers  
Ongar  
Essex  
CM5 9QF 
 

PARISH: Stanford Rivers 
 

WARD: Passingford 
 

APPLICANT: N H Estates 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Variation of condition 2 'Drawing numbers' and removal of 
condition 17 'Obscure glazing' of planning permission 
EPF/1008/11 (Redevelopment of site to provide 4 detached 
chalet bungalows and garages) to permit the redevelopment 
of the site for 4 two storey detached houses with 
accommodation in the roof and lowering site levels. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Refuse Permission 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=547790 
 
REASON FOR REFUSAL 
 
 

1 The proposed development is inappropriate development in the Green Belt.  
Moreover, by reason of the significant upper storey bulk of the proposed houses, the 
proposed development would cause considerably greater harm to the openness of 
the Green Belt than the development approved under planning permission ref 
EPF/1008/11.  The considerations put forward in favour of the development do not 
amount to very special circumstances that outweigh all of the harm that would be 
caused by it.  Consequently the proposal is contrary to Local Plan and Alterations 
policies GB2A and GB7A, which are consistent with the provisions of the national 
Planning Policy Framework. 
 

 
 
 
This application is before this Committee since it is an application that is considered by the 
Director of Planning and Economic Development as appropriate to be presented for a Committee 
decision (Pursuant to The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Directorate – Delegation of Council 
function, Schedule 1, Appendix A.(k)) 
 
 

Page 54



Description of Site: 
 
The application site is located on the southeast side of London Road (the A113), Stanford Rivers, 
between the Woodman PH and former White Bear PH.  It is within the Metropolitan Green Belt but 
is not within a conservation area. 
 
The White Bear PH has been converted to a number of dwellings: White Bear House and White 
Bear Mews.  The Woodman PH is set adjacent to London Road while White Bear House and 
Mews are situated off an access road southeast of London Road at significantly lower level such 
that they are not clearly visible from the main road.  Those buildings are Grade II listed. 
 
The site itself is a disused engineering works and detached house accessed off the same road 
that provides access to White Bear House and Mews. It is an irregular shaped site, approximately 
rectangular in shape.  It is largely screened from view of London Road by a hedgerow on the 
highway verge, a leylandii hedge adjacent to the access to the site and by its level being 
significantly lower than that of the carriageway. 
 
The buildings on site are a mix of single and two-storey structures with a maximum ridge height of 
7.2m situated on the north-eastern part of the site that enclose a concrete surfaced yard area.  
They are substantial and permanent structures that have a total volume of some 2300m3 covering 
a ground area of 545m2. 
 
The south-western half of the site is an open grassed area with some trees.  The site levels drop 
approximately 2m from northwest to southeast. 
 
The south-eastern boundary of the site is enclosed by close board fencing, beyond which is an 
open field that falls away from the site.  Views to the east beyond the adjacent field are of open 
countryside.  The field is used for a mix of agricultural and recreational purposes, the recreational 
activity being clay pigeon shooting. 
 
The north-western site boundary is enclosed by a close board fencing with hedgerow on highway 
land between the site boundary and London Road. 
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
This application is reported to Committee for decision since the proposed development would be 
of a very similar form to that proposed under application EPF/2399/09, which was refused by this 
Committee on 14 April 2010.  That decision, which was contrary to Officer recommendation, was 
subsequently upheld at appeal. 
 
It is proposed to redevelop land comprising a disused engineering works and detached house 
together with a large grassed area to provide 4 two-storey detached houses and associated 
gardens.  The proposal is made on the basis that it is a minor material amendment to an approved 
development (planning permission ref EPF/1008/11) of 4 two-storey detached houses that take the 
form of chalet-bungalows with the first floor contained entirely within the roof space.  Each 
approved house would have 3 bedrooms and contain an integral double garage. 
 
The houses proposed in this application would also be situated on the developed north-eastern 
part of the site and be accessed by the existing access point. 
 
A significant difference between the proposed development and that approved is the entire land 
level on this part of the site would be lowered by approximately 1m. 
 
A further significant difference is the houses would be two full storeys with a roof over and would 
not include any garage.  Each house would have 5 bedrooms with the master bedroom and a 

Page 55



playroom proposed in the roof space.  There would be the opportunity for the designated playroom 
to be used as a 6th bedroom. 
 
The houses would be arranged much as those approved.  One house would be sited midway 
along the northeastern boundary and its garden would continue to the southeast boundary.  A 
private drive would separate that house from the remaining 3.  Their private gardens would be 
provided on the existing open part of the site. 
 
The houses would have maximum ridge heights of 8.75m.  The total volume of all the proposed 
buildings would be some 2816m3 while their ground area would be 422m2.  In comparison, the 
approved chalet bungalows would have maximum ridge heights of 7.3m and their total volume 
would be some 2800m3 while their ground area would be 570m2. 
 
The applicant maintains a previously accepted offer of a contribution of £74,000 towards the 
provision of off-site affordable housing.  The applicant states he is willing to complete a deed of 
variation to the effect that a S106 agreement attached to planning permission EPF/1008/11 would 
apply equally to the new permission.  The terms of the agreement are that 50% of the contribution 
would be paid prior to the commencement of the development and the balance within 12 months 
of commencement. 
 
Relevant History: 
 
EPF/0713/09 Retaining store/forge to front and converting to two bedroom single storey unit, 

retaining spray and bending building and conversion to a two bedroom bungalow, 
retaining two, two storey workshops and office building and converting to a four 
bedroom house.  Approved following the completion of a S.106 agreement requiring 
the payment of a contribution of £100,000 to the provision of social housing upon 
completion of the development.  (Development not commenced) 

 
EPF/2399/09 Replacement of existing 2 storey dwelling and redevelopment of remainder of site 

to provide 3 additional 2 storey dwellings and associated garaging and amenity 
space (giving a total of 4 new 5/6 bedroom houses).  Refused on Green Belt 
grounds.  Subsequent appeal dismissed.  

 
EPF/2400/09 Replacement of existing 2 storey dwelling and redevelopment of remainder of site 

to provide 3 additional 2 storey dwellings and associated garaging and amenity 
space (Alternative scheme also giving a total of 4 new 5/6 bedroom houses).  
Refused on Green Belt grounds.  Subsequent appeal dismissed. 

 
EPF/0372/13 Amendment to EPF/1008/11 (Redevelopment of site to provide 4 detached chalet 

bungalows and garages). Application not valid.  Although not withdrawn, this 
application has been superseded by the current application. 

 
EPF/0406/13 Minor material amendment to planning permission reference EPF/1008/11 

(Redevelopment of site to provide 4 detached chalet bungalows and garages).
 Withdrawn following the proposal being found to be more than a minor 
material amendment. 

 
Policies Applied: 
 
NPPF 
 
Policies applied to application EPF/1008/11 that remain applicable: 
 
CP2 (compliant) Protecting the Quality of the Rural and Built Environment 

Page 56



CP3-5 and ST1 (compliant) Sustainable development policies 
GB2A (generally compliant) Development in the Green Belt 
GB7A (compliant) Conspicuous Development 
GB15A (compliant) Replacement Dwellings 
HC12 (partially compliant) Development Affecting the Setting of Listed Buildings 
H2A (compliant) Previously Developed Land 
H3A (partially compliant) Housing Density 
H4A (partially compliant) Dwelling Mix 
H5A-7A (partially compliant) Policy relating to the provision for affordable housing 
DBE1, 2, 4, 6, 8 & -9 (compliant) Policy relating to design and impact of development on 

amenity 
LL10 (compliant) Adequacy of Provision for Landscape Retention 
LL11 (compliant) Landscaping Schemes 
ST4 (compliant) Road Safety 
ST6 (compliant) Vehicle Parking 
 
Policies applied to application EPF/1008/11 that can no longer be applied: 
 
E4A (NOT compliant) Protection of Employment Sites 
E4B (NOT compliant) Alternative Uses for Employment Sites 
 
Summary of Representations: 
 
The occupants of 4 neighbouring properties were consulted and a site notice was displayed but no 
response was received. 
 
STANFORD RIVERS PARISH COUNCIL: 
 
“The Parish Council has NO OBJECTION to this Application however we would ask that the 
District Council ask Essex County Council Highways to look at making improvements along the 
stretch of road where the development is taking place in order to reduce the speed of traffic and 
improve highway safety.” 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The District Council accepted the principle of the loss of this site for employment purposes and 
accepted the sustainability of the location for residential development when it granted planning 
permission for the conversion of the existing buildings to provide a total of four dwellings including 
the existing house, Ref EPF/0713/09.   
 
In dismissing the appeals against the refusal of application EPF/2399/09 and EPF/2400/09 the 
Planning Inspector found the improvement of the sites appearance by the proposals to be an 
important consideration.  He found the scheme that restricted the built form to the area covered by 
the existing buildings (EPF/2399/09) far preferable to the alternative proposal.  However, he found 
the bulkiness of the buildings proposed and the urban character of the schemes layout would 
cause significant harm to the Green Belt, countryside and setting of neighbouring listed buildings.  
The inspector therefore concluded that, on balance, the improvement in the sites appearance that 
would be achieved by that scheme would not amount to the very special circumstance necessary 
to justify the proposal. 
 
The District Council subsequently found the proposal for 4 chalet bungalows overcame the 
Inspectors objections to the proposal and gave planning permission on completion of a S106 
agreement in respect of a contribution towards off-site affordable housing (planning permission 
reference EPF/1008/11). 
 

Page 57



The current application proposes a variation of a planning condition on that consent requiring the 
development to be constructed in accordance with approved drawing numbers.  The variation 
would be to replace the drawing numbers with those of the drawings describing the current 
proposed development.  This mechanism was introduced by the Government to allow greater 
flexibility for developers when implementing planning permissions so that minor material 
amendments can be made to approved schemes without the need to make a full planning 
application.  Nonetheless, should consent be granted that consent will amount to a new full 
planning permission and it would be necessary to include all appropriate planning conditions.  The 
period for implementing the new development cannot be varied by this mechanism however.  In 
this case, planning permission EPF/1008/11 was given on 15 November 2011 therefore the last 
date for implementing any consent given for the present proposal would remain 14 November 
2014. 
 
The matter of whether the proposal is a minor material amendment to the approved development 
has been given consideration by Officers when assessing the validity of this application.  On 
balance, it was found the proposal can be treated as such since there is no statutory definition of 
what a minor material amendment.  In making that decision weight was given to the Governments 
objective of bringing development forward.  Members are entitled to take a different view. 
 
On the basis that the proposal is for a minor material amendment the main issues to consider 
when assessing the planning merits of this proposal are whether the development is acceptable in 
Green Belt terms and its effect on the setting of the adjacent listed buildings.  This must be 
assessed having regard to the planning history of the site and particular weight given to the impact 
of the applicant’s fall-back position of implementing the approved development.  Particular weight 
is given to the approach taken by the Planning Inspector when dismissing the appeal against the 
refusal of planning application EPF/2399/09.  In the light of that decision Officers would not now 
make a favourable assessment of that proposal. 
 
Openness of the Green Belt: 
 
The proposed development and the approved development includes the replacement of an 
existing house.  However, the existing house is a significantly smaller and lower structure than any 
of the proposed or approved houses.  The greater part of both schemes would result in the 
replacement of existing commercial buildings with houses.  As a consequence they do not amount 
to replacement of existing buildings with new buildings in the same use.  Moreover, both schemes 
as a whole would result in an increase in total building volume on the site of some 22% and an 
increase in the spread of buildings across the site.  Both the approved development and presently 
proposed development are therefore materially larger than that which exists on the site. 
 
Both schemes do amount to the complete redevelopment of a previously developed site.  The 
NPPF states such development may not be inappropriate where it would not have a greater impact 
on the openness of the Green Belt (and the purpose of including the land within it) than the 
existing development.  Having regard to the above analysis it is clear that both schemes would 
have a greater impact on openness than the existing development.  The comparative impact of 
both schemes will be considered further below, but on that basis it is found the development to 
which this application relates is inappropriate in the Green Belt and therefore, by definition, 
harmful.  Such development can only be allowed where very special circumstances exist that 
outweigh the harm caused by its inappropriateness, and any other harm including harm to 
openness. 
 
The current proposal is for a development that would be of a very similar form to that proposed 
under application EPF/2399/09.  The main differences are the omission of attached garages and 
the lowering land levels on the developed part of the site by approximately 1m. 
 

Page 58



Compared to the existing development on the site, the proposed development would result in an 
increase in built volume of some 500m3, 22% of that existing.  This is not materially different to that 
of the approved development.  However, when assessing the impact of the development proposed 
under refused application EPF/2399/09 on the openness of the Green Belt, the inspector also 
gave particular weigh to matters including height and bulk. 
 
Since the present proposal is for full two-storey houses that could each have up to 6 bedrooms as 
opposed to 3 of the approved development, they would appear considerably bulkier than the 
approved development.  That is primarily due to their additional wall height and width at first floor 
and roof level.  At up to 8.5m high they would also be approximately 1m higher than both the 
existing development on the site and the approved development.  The visual impact of the 
increase in height would, however, be mitigated by the proposed 1m reduction in site levels on the 
developed part of the site. 
 
When seen from London Road the upper parts of the roofs of the new houses would be apparent.  
However, as a consequence of the lowering of land levels the ridge heights of the houses would 
be similar to the maximum height of the existing development.  Furthermore, the deletion of 
garages from the development would result in development on a smaller ground area and some 
reduction in visual bulk.  However, the consequence of lowering land levels and deleting the 
garages for the openness of the Green Belt must be balanced against the additional bulk and 
width of the proposed houses at upper level.  That bulk would be considerable therefore the 
presently proposed houses are found to have a materially greater impact on openness than the 
approved development when seen from London Road. 
 
The development would appear particularly prominent when seen from the open countryside to the 
southeast.  That is a consequence of a drop in land levels beyond the site which would afford clear 
views of the bulk of the development.  The additional bulk of the proposed development would be 
clearly visible from this direction and the harm caused to openness of the Green Belt would be 
much greater than the approved development despite the proposed omission of garages and 
reduction in land levels. 
 
The proposed upper level bulk would also have the effect of giving the development a much more 
urban appearance which, compared to the approved development, would have greater 
prominence and be at odds with the rural setting of the site. 
 
On the matter of openness, therefore, it is found the present proposal would cause considerable 
additional harm to the openness of the Green Belt. 
 
Setting of Listed Buildings 
 
The application site is set between two Grade II listed buildings, the Woodman PH on higher 
ground to the south of the site and the former White Bear PH, cow converted to flats, on lower 
ground to the north of the site. 
 
Although the proposed houses would be well separated from the Woodman PH, they would be 
close to The White Bear.  The additional bulk of the buildings when compared to the approved 
chalet-bungalows would result in a development that would appear more intrusive in the setting of 
The White Bear.  While that impact is somewhat mitigated by the proposed lowering of land levels, 
it is the upper floor bulk that would cause the main harm.  Essentially, the approved and proposed 
developments would have similar ridge heights in relation to The White Bear but the upper floor 
bulk of the proposal would somewhat diminish its visual importance. 
 
This issue is more finely balanced however, and the Councils Conservation Officer has found no 
harm would be caused by the current proposals to either neighbouring listed building. 
 

Page 59



Other Matters 
 
Although garages of the approved development, or indeed those of refused application 
EPF/2399/09, are not included in this proposal the development would continue to comply with the 
adopted vehicle parking standards. 
 
The application site is accessed indirectly from the main carriageway of London Road rather than 
directly off it.  Since the development would not generate any more vehicle movements than the 
lawful use of the site for employment purposes there is no case for any traffic calming measures 
on London Road arising from the proposal.  Consequently, should planning permission be given 
that would not serve as justification for providing such measures.  In the circumstances it would 
not be appropriate to seek the implementation such measures by Essex County Council in 
connection with the grant of such permission as requested by Stanford Rivers Parish Council. 
 
The continued provision of a financial contribution for affordable housing addresses the matters 
raised in relation to previously relevant policies concerning the loss of employment uses. 
 
The removal of condition 17 is acceptable since it is specifically designed in relation to the 
approved scheme and is not necessary for the present scheme. 
 
There is an issue of potential excessive overlooking to The White Bear from Plot 1, which does not 
arise with the approved development.  There is also potential excessive overlooking from Plot 3 to 
the houses proposed on the adjoining plots 2 and 4.  This matter appears capable of resolution 
without any major redesign and the applicant has been approached with a view to doing so.  The 
outcome of that exercise will be reported verbally. 
 
Case for Very Special Circumstances: 
 
A case of very special circumstances was accepted for the approved development, which also is 
inappropriate and harmful to openness.  That case was the approved development would achieve 
a much better balance between harm to openness, and impact on the setting of the adjacent listed 
buildings than a previously approved proposal (which had lapsed) for the conversion of existing 
buildings on the site.  The combination of achieving a significant improvement in the appearance 
of the site and setting of listed buildings was found to be a sufficiently unique set of circumstances 
which, in that particular case, just amounted to very special circumstances.  In other words, the 
decision to grant planning permission was a balanced one. 
 
The applicant maintains that the current proposal would achieve a further improvement to 
openness and would, as a consequence of providing more floor space at upper level, achieve a 
more spacious development. 
 
In relation to impact on openness the current proposal is found to cause greater harm than the 
approved development for the reasons set out above.  While the proposal may be more spacious 
at ground level that would not translate to an improvement in openness since the additional space 
would only be appreciated within the site.  The additional upper storey bulk of the proposed 
development would be clearly apparent and give rise to harm greater than that of the approved 
development. 
 
No other matters are expressly put forward by the applicant as very special circumstances.  In the 
circumstances it is found that while there are a number of material considerations to have regard 
to when assessing the merits of the proposal, no matters are raised that clearly outweigh the harm 
the present proposal would cause.  Consequently it is found that no very special circumstances in 
favour of the development have been demonstrated. 
 

Page 60



Conclusion: 
 
The proposed development has been found to amount to a minor material amendment of the 
development approved under planning permission EPF/1008/11.  In relation to its impact on the 
setting on adjacent listed buildings the proposed revised development is found to, on balance, 
safeguard their setting.  As with the approved development, the proposal is inappropriate in the 
Green Belt.  However, it would cause considerable additional harm to the openness of the Green 
Belt as a consequence of its additional upper storey bulk.  No very special circumstances in favour 
of the proposal that would outweigh the harm caused by reason of inappropriateness and harm to 
openness have been demonstrated. 
 
The matter of potential overlooking is expected to have been resolved by the date the Area Plans 
Sub-Committee will consider this application and it will be reported verbally. 
 
The approved development was only found to be acceptable on balance.  In the circumstances 
Officers find there is no way forward for the development.  It is understood the motivation for the 
applicant to secure planning permission for much larger houses than those approved is financial, 
although no viability assessment for the current proposal compared to the approved development 
has been submitted.  A revised proposal should include full information on the matter of viability.  
In the light of the NPPF, the status of Local Plan and Alterations policies and, in particular the 
finding that policies E4A and E4B are not compliant, the applicant should also reconsider the need 
to make any contribution to affordable housing. 
 
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: Stephan Solon 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564018 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 

Page 61



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

4 6 . 6 m

39.9m

46.3m

W h i t e  B e a r  M
e w s

Works

The Woodman
(PH)

153

White Bear House

White Bear Cottage

L O
N D O N  R

O A D

Wells

Well

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee East 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

3 
Application Number: EPF/0688/13 
Site Name: 151-153 Millrite Engineering, London 

Road, Stanford Rivers, CM5 9QF 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 

Page 62



Report Item No: 4 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0900/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Mickleham 

Theydon Road 
Epping 
Essex 
CM16 4EE 
 

PARISH: Theydon Bois 
 

WARD: Theydon Bois 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Mike Bond  
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Demolition of the existing garage and replacement with a 
garden room/annexe. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=548973 
 
CONDITIONS  
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 
 

2 No construction works above ground level shall take place until documentary and 
photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details. 
 

3 The proposed development shall only be used as ancillary accommodation for the 
existing dwellinghouse and shall not be occupied as a unit separately from the 
dwelling presently known as Mickleham. 
 

 
 
 
This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to 
The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Directorate – Delegation of Council function, Schedule 1, 
Appendix A.(g)) 
 
Description of Site: 
 
The application site is a two storey detached property fronting the junction of Theydon Road and 
Great Gregories Lane. The property was once a semi-detached pair that has been merged into a 
single property. 
 

Page 63



The property benefits from a generous garden stretching along Great Gregories Lane. At the end 
of the garden is a single detached garage with separate gated access onto Great Gregories Lane. 
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
The applicant seeks planning permission to demolish the existing single garage and replace the 
structure with a single storey building with a footprint 11m x 5.5m reaching a height of 3.2m with a 
flat roof.  
 
The proposed structure is offset from the boundaries by 1.5m, 3.6m and 3.2m, therefore is well 
separated from the boundaries. 
 
The proposed building is intended for use as one bedroom annexe accommodation. The building 
would be self contained, with its own kitchen, shower room and living areas. 
 
The proposed building requires permission as the height is 3.2m (as oppose to 3m as allowed 
under the GPDO) and as the building provides primary accommodation. The use of the building is 
therefore not within the definition of an incidental use as required by the GPDO. 
 
Relevant History: 
 
None 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
CP2 (Compliant) – Protecting the Quality of the Rural and Built Environment 
GB2A (Generally Compliant, adjustments needed in relation to agricultural buildings and impact to 
openness only) – Development in the Green Belt 
DBE9 (Compliant) – Loss of Amenity 
DBE10 (Compliant) – Residential Extensions 
 
Summary of Representations: 
 
3 Neighbouring properties have been notified. No neighbouring objections have been received. 
 
THEYDON BOIS PARISH COUNCIL: Objection. This proposal effectively constitutes a new 
residential dwelling in the Green Belt. It is designed as a permanent and self contained residence 
with bedroom and living room. Therefore we take the view that this is an inappropriate 
development in the Green Belt and thus is contrary to our strict policy on protection of the Green 
Belt. 
 
In the event that consent is however granted, then we would strongly recommend the application 
of a permanent condition to ensure that the outbuilding must be used for purposes ancillary to the 
main house only. 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main issues that arise with this application are the potential impact to the Green Belt, impact 
to the street scene in terms of design, then also the potential adverse impact to neighbouring 
properties. Parking is not a concern as ample parking is provided to the front of the main dwelling.  
 
Green Belt 
Limited additions to existing properties within the Green Belt are identified as acceptable within 
policy GB2A. The proposed footprint is of a reasonable size in relation to the floor area of the main 
dwelling, and the proposed scale is akin to many outbuildings in the district where garden sizes 

Page 64



are more generous. Therefore no concern is raised in relation to the scale or form of the building in 
the Green Belt. 
 
The objection raised by the Parish Council regarding potential separation of the annexe is noted, 
however this can be dealt with by way of a condition requiring that the building is occupied in 
association with the main dwelling, known as Mickleham only. The approach has been satisfactory 
elsewhere in the District.  
 
It is also noted that the building is orientated so that the larger frontage looks out to the boundary 
and towards the main dwelling as opposed to the highway. Generally detached dwellings are 
designed to have a greater presence in the street by having a longer street frontage.  
 
Street scene  
The proposed annexe building is single storey, flat roofed and modern in design. This is a direct 
contrast with dwellings in this area that are larger, with a pitched roof and generally orientated with 
a longer frontage to the street as oppose to the 5.5m proposed. The design of the building is such 
that it appears as intended, as a modern outbuilding that is associated with what is clearly the 
main dwelling on the plot. The separate access is noted, however many properties maintain a 
garden access for ease of access and this is not considered unacceptable. The proposed annexe 
is therefore considered to appear as a small scale addition to the main property, in the rear garden 
area and to be largely obscured from view by landscaping, unless viewed from immediately 
opposite the access, where in its surrounding context, the building proposed is not considered 
unacceptable. 
 
Neighbouring amenity 
The proposed annexe is well separated from neighbouring properties and offset from the 
boundaries. The height of the building is low level and the boundaries are screened by mature 
vegetation, therefore no significant adverse impacts are anticipated to neighbouring amenity. 
 
Conclusion: 
 
The proposed annexe is considered acceptable, with a design and scale that reflects the intended 
use. There is no significant adverse impact identified to the Green Belt, Street scene or 
neighbouring amenity and concerns regarding future subdivision can be dealt with by condition, 
therefore approval is recommended. 
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: Jenny Cordell 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 574481 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 

Page 65



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

98.5m98.5m
MeadowsideMeadowside

Mickleham

Meadow

Mickleham

Oakmead

Greyroofs

Oakmead

Greyroofs

Warreners

D e l a f o rd s
Cottage

Warreners

D e l a f o rd s
Cottage

GreenwaysGreenways

El
Sub Sta

DelafordsDelafords

Theydon

Waney Hill

End

Meadow

End
Theydon

Waney Hill

El
Sub Sta

L A N
E

G
R E A T  G R E G

O
R I E S

L A N
E

G
R E A T  G R E G

O
R I E S

Pond

Pond

Pond

Pond

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee East 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

4 
Application Number: EPF/0900/13 
Site Name: Mickleham, Theydon Road, Epping, 

CM16 4EE 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 

Page 66



Report Item No: 5 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0916/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 3a Hemnall Street 

Epping 
Essex 
CM16 4LR 
 

PARISH: Epping 
 

WARD: Epping Hemnall 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Darren Hunt 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Demolition of the existing dwelling and garage building, with 
the erection of a terrace of 4 no. 2 and a half storey dwellings 
and alterations to the vehicular entrance and front boundary 
wall, some of which falls within the Conservation Area. 
(Revised application) 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=549035 
 
CONDITIONS  
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: BRD/12/042/001, BRD/12/042/002, BRD/12/042/003 Rev: 
A, BRD/12/042/004, BRD/12/042/004 Rev: A, BRD/12/042/005 Rev: C, OS 539-
12.1, OS 539-12.2, OS 539-12.3 
 

3 No development shall take place until samples of the types and colours of the 
external finishes have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority in writing prior to the commencement of the development. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details. For 
the purposes of this condition, the samples shall only be made available for 
inspection by the Local Planning Authority at the planning application site itself.  
 

4 Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, the proposed window 
openings shown on drawing no. BRD/12/042/003 Rev: A to be obscured shall be 
entirely fitted with obscured glass and have fixed frames to a height of 1.7 metres 
above the floor of the room in which the window is installed and shall be 
permanently retained in that condition. 
 
 

5 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 as amended (or any other order revoking, further 
amending or re-enacting that order) no development generally permitted by virtue of 

Page 67



Part 1, Class A and B shall be undertaken without the prior written permission of the 
Local Planning Authority. 
 

6 Prior to occupation of the development, hard and soft landscape works shall be 
carried out as submitted within the Open Spaces Soft Landscape Plan drawing no. 
OS 539-12.3. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or 
establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any 
replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously 
damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size 
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation. 
 

7 No development, including works of demolition or site clearance, shall take place 
until Tree Protection measures have been put in place as submitted in the Open 
Spaces Aboricultural Impact Assessment and Tree Protection Plan drawing no. OS 
539/12.2. The development shall be carried out only in accordance with this 
approved document unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written consent to 
any variation. 
 
 

8 The proposed use of this site has been identified as being particularly vulnerable if 
land contamination is present, despite no specific former potentially contaminating 
uses having been identified for this site.   
 
Should any discoloured or odorous soils be encountered during development works 
or should any hazardous materials or significant quantities of non-soil forming 
materials be found, then all development works should be stopped, the Local 
Planning Authority contacted and a scheme to investigate the risks and / or the 
adoption of any required remedial measures be submitted to, agreed and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the recommencement of 
development works. 
 
Following the completion of development works and prior to the first occupation of 
the site, sufficient information must be submitted to demonstrate that any required 
remedial measures were satisfactorily implemented or confirmation provided that no 
unexpected contamination was encountered. 
 

9 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 08.00 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
 

10 Prior to the first occupation of the development, details of how the existing vehicular 
access onto Station Road shall be permanently closed, incorporating the 
reinstatement to full height of the footway and dropped kerbs, shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, in consultation with the 
Highway Authority. The works shall be implemented prior to occupation of the 
development, and retained thereafter in accordance with the approved details. 
 

11 Prior to first occupation of the development, a Residential Travel Information Pack, 
as approved by Essex County Council, shall be provided and implemented to the 
future occupants of the dwellings and shall include six one day travel vouchers for 
use with the relevant local public transport operator. 

Page 68



 

12 Prior to the occupation of the development, details of the number, location and 
design of cycle parking facilities shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The approved facilities shall be provided prior to 
occupation of the dwellings and retained thereafter. 
 
 
 

13 Prior to the commencement of the development, details showing the means to 
prevent the discharge of surface water from the development onto the highway shall 
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
approved scheme shall be carried out in its entirety prior to the access becoming 
operational and shall be retained thereafter. 
 
 
 

14 Any gates provided at the vehicular access shall be inward opening only and shall 
be set back a minimum of 6 metres from the back edge of the carriageway. 
 
 

15 No unbound material shall be used in the surface treatment of the vehicular access 
within 5 metres of the highway boundary of the site. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
This application is before this Committee since it is for a type of development that cannot be 
determined by Officers if more than two objections material to the planning merits of the proposal 
to be approved are received (Pursuant to The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Directorate – 
Delegation of Council function, Schedule 1, Appendix A.(f).) 
 
Description of Site: 
 
The application site currently contains a detached part single storey/part two storey dwelling with a 
small detached garage located on the south eastern side of Hemnall Street on the junction with 
Station Road. The section of road serving the site is a one way street. Adjacent to the site to the 
northeast are the service yard of the shops within the High Street. To the immediate east, 
northeast and south are residential properties. The very front section of the site (containing the 
historic boundary wall) is located within the conservation area. 
 
The existing building is L shaped and forms part of the side boundary with The Sales, Hemnall 
Street. The existing dwelling measures a maximum width of 15m and maximum depth of 15m and 
is only partially two storeys in height, with the remainder being single storey. The existing site 
benefits from two vehicle access points, one on Hemnall Street and one on Station Road serving 
the detached garage. 
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
Consent is being sought for the demolition of the existing dwelling and garage and the erection of 
a terrace of 4 no. two-and-a-half storey dwellings, along with alterations to the vehicular entrance 

Page 69



and front boundary wall. The proposed new dwellings would each be 5.5m in width and 9.5m in 
depth and would be two and a half storeys in height. The ridge height of the proposed 
development would be 9.7m and the total width of the terrace of four houses would be 22m. 
 
Relevant History: 
 
EPF/0119/13 - Demolition of existing dwelling and garage building, with the erection of a terrace of 
4no. 2 and a half storey dwellings and alterations to the vehicular entrance and front boundary 
wall, some of which falls within the Conservation Area – withdrawn 15/02/13 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
CP1 – Achieving sustainable development objectives 
CP2 – Protecting the quality of the rural and built environment 
CP3 – New development 
CP6 – Achieving sustainable urban development patterns 
H2A – Previously developed land 
H3A – Housing density 
HC6 – Character, appearance and setting of conservation areas 
HC7 – Development within conservation areas 
DBE1 – Design of new buildings 
DBE2 – Effect on neighbouring properties 
DBE3 – Design in urban areas 
DBE8 – Private amenity space 
DBE9 – Loss of amenity 
LL11 – Landscaping schemes 
ST1 – Location of development 
ST4 – Road safety 
ST6 – Vehicle parking 
 
The above policies form part of the Councils 1998 Local Plan. Following the publication of the 
NPPF, policies from this plan (which was adopted pre-2004) are to be afforded due weight where 
they are consistent with the Framework. The above policies are broadly consistent with the NPPF 
and therefore are afforded full weight. 
 
Consultation Carried Out and Summary of Representations Received: 
 
41 neighbours were consulted and a Site Notice displayed on 21/05/13. 
 
TOWN COUNCIL – No objection. 
 
EPPING SOCIETY – Object as this is an overdevelopment of the site, is out of keeping with this 
side of Hemnall Street, it would result in a loss of amenity to neighbours, and as there is 
inadequate parking and amenity space proposed. 
 
THE SALES, HEMNALL STREET – Object as the development would be very bulky and not in 
proportion to the houses on this side of Hemnall Street. 
 
ROSCOMMON, HEMNALL STREET – Object due to overlooking and loss of amenity to 
neighbours and with regards to potential traffic problems. 
 
1 HARTLAND ROAD – Object as the development would be out of keeping with the area, it will 
have an adverse effect on the residential amenity of neighbours, and it would provide inadequate 
amenity space for future residents. Also there are concerns about highway safety. 
 

Page 70



3 HARTLAND ROAD – Object as this is too dense a development that would be out of scale and 
dominant on this side of Hemnall Street, it would be detrimental to neighbours amenities, it fails to 
provide sufficient amenity space, and concerned about the control over the proposed obscure 
glazing. 
 
5 HARTLAND ROAD – Object as this is out of scale with the residential side of Hemnall Street, it 
would result in a loss of privacy, and as it would be an overdevelopment of the site out of character 
with the surrounding area. The additional information submitted (including the street scene and 3D 
images) does not alter this opinion. 
 
9 HARTLAND ROAD – Object due to inadequate parking provision, loss of privacy to neighbours, 
and as it would be out of character with the area. 
 
Main Issues and Considerations: 
 
The key issues within this application are the suitability of the site for such a development, amenity 
considerations, design, and regarding highway and parking concerns. 
 
Suitability of site: 
 
The application site is located within the urban area of Epping, adjacent to the designated town 
centre. Epping is one of the larger built up towns within the District and is well served by local 
services and amenities, and has good public transport links.  The ‘golden thread’ that runs through 
the NPPF in terms of both plan-making and decision-taking is the presumption in favour of 
sustainable development. The principle of further development within the type of location is 
considered to accord with this presumption and therefore this should be afforded significant 
weight. Furthermore, the redevelopment of this site would constitute the reuse of previously 
developed land. Both the NPPF and Local Plan policy H2A encourage the reuse and 
intensification of use of such sites; however applications still need to be assessed on their 
individual merits. 
 
But the main consideration is whether the density is inappropriate to the location of this site close 
to the commercial buildings in Station Road and in a relatively built up area the proposal is 
considered to be in keeping with the pattern of development. 
 
Amenity considerations: 
 
The proposed development would replace an existing part single storey/part two storey building 
with a considerably larger two-and-a-half storey row of dwellings. The proposed new dwellings 
would be some 2m higher than the adjacent neighbour to the northeast, however the new houses 
would not extend beyond the rear wall of this neighbouring house and there would be a minimum 
distance of 1.1m from the shared boundary and a total distance of 5.1m between the flank walls of 
the dwellings, the area of which contains the neighbours existing attached garage. Given the 
orientation of the dwellings, the proposed development would only affect direct sunlight reaching 
the neighbours rear garden in the late afternoon, and there would be no overlooking of this 
neighbours rear amenity space. As such, whilst the proposed development would clearly have 
some visual impact on this neighbour due to the increased bulk and height, it is not considered 
that this would be unduly detrimental to their amenities. 
 
The adjacent neighbouring property to the south is an unusually located and plotted dwelling that 
has its rear wall almost forming the side boundary with the application site. Given the unusual 
layout of this neighbour, it is not considered that there would be any undue impact on the 
amenities of these neighbouring residents. 
 

Page 71



Due to the staggered rear boundary to the site, the dwellings would be located at varying 
distances from the shared rear boundaries with the properties on Hartland Road. The proposed 
four dwellings would be located an individual minimum distance (from north to south) of 8.5m, 8m, 
7.7m, and 10.2m. Whilst this distance is not ideal, the neighbours to the rear benefit from very 
deep gardens and, as a result, the distance between the rear walls of the new houses and the 
closest rear windows to the neighbours in Hartland Road would be between 31m and 35m. This 
exceeds the 25m window to window requirement laid out within the Essex Design Guide. 
Furthermore, the upper most windows of the proposed dwellings would serve en-suites, and half of 
the windows within the first floor would serve bathrooms. As such, the majority of the windows 
(two-thirds) would be obscure glazed and would not therefore result in overlooking. Also the 
shared boundary to the rear is very heavily screened, which would further protect against a loss of 
privacy. As such, it is not considered that the proposed development would result in any 
detrimental loss of amenity to the neighbours within Hartland Road. 
 
Local Plan policy DBE8 and the Essex Design Guide expect 20 sq. m. of private amenity space for 
each habitable room when assessing new residential dwellings. Under this expectation, the 
proposed houses would require a minimum of 80 sq. m. private amenity space per dwelling. The 
majority of the proposed dwellings fail to meet this requirement, as three of the new dwellings 
would only benefit from 42 sq. m., 45 sq. m. and 64 sq. m. of rear garden (although the 
southernmost property would benefit from 99 sq. m. of garden area). Notwithstanding this, the 
requirement is only an expected figure and the supporting text of policy DBE8 recognises that 
“subject to the character of adjacent residential areas… the sizes of private gardens are for the 
most part matters for the marketing judgement of developers” and states that “the Council may be 
prepared to relax these standards in certain circumstances. These may include where:… iii) the 
size and/or disposition of a plot does not quite facilitate what, in all other terms, would be an 
acceptable form of development”. 
 
There have been several decisions (at both District Council and Planning Inspector level) for 
residential development with a lower than expected level of amenity space in town centre locations 
and where there is public amenity space available. Whilst not located within the town centre, the 
site is located adjacent to this in an extremely sustainable urban location. Furthermore it is fairly 
close to a variety of public amenity areas, such as Epping Forest, Bell Common and the Town 
Common. The majority of dwellings within the locality on this side of Hemnall Street have similarly 
short gardens with less than required levels of private amenity space, including both the adjacent 
dwellings, and as such it is not considered that the lack of amenity space would warrant a refusal 
of planning permission in this instance. 
 
Design: 
 
The proposed development is two-and-a-half storeys in height, with the second floor being located 
within the roof area and served by front and rear dormer windows. Although the surrounding 
properties on this side of Hemnall Street are predominantly two storeys in height, and the 
proposed development would be some 2m higher than the adjacent dwelling, other two-and-a-half 
and three storey properties can be seen within both Hemnall Street and Hartland Road to the rear. 
Given the location of the site on the corner of Hemnall Street and Station Road it is considered 
that a larger, more prominent building could be accommodated without detriment to the street 
scene. The building on the opposite corner is a larger three storey building (Purlieu House). The 
combination of this and the proposed new dwellings would create a ‘gateway’ into Hemnall Street 
at this junction and would not be considered out of character with the surrounding area. On the 
opposite Hemnall Street/Station Road junction is an even larger four storey building (Edmunds 
House), and further down Hemnall Street can be found examples of three storey buildings. As 
such it is not considered that the overall bulk or height of the development or introduction of two-
and-a-half storey buildings in this location would be detrimental to the street scene. 
 

Page 72



Although the immediate neighbouring properties are detached or semi-detached properties there 
are several rows of terrace properties within Hemnall Street. As such the principal of the 
development is not considered detrimental to the character of the area. 
 
The specific design of the proposal was subject to pre-application discussions between the 
applicant, Planning Officer, and the Councils Conservation Officer, and it was considered that the 
details, materials and overall appearance would not be detrimental to the character or appearance 
of the area. The scheme has been amended since the previously withdrawn scheme, which 
includes a reduction in height of some 420mm and a reduction in eaves to create fully submerged 
dormers and a more proportionate roof to wall ratio to the building. The materials to be used would 
be traditional to complement the adjacent conservation area and to ensure a suitable appearance 
and finish to the development. 
 
An arboricultural impact assessment, tree protection plan, and soft landscaping plan have been 
submitted with the application. There are no trees worthy of retention on the application site, 
however there is a tree in an adjacent garden which overhangs the rear boundary. This has been 
identified as requiring protection during construction, which can be dealt with by way of a 
condition. Additionally, as with any new development of this scale, hard and soft landscaping 
should be implemented. Sufficiently detailed information has been provided with the application, 
which is considered acceptable. 
 
Highways and parking issues: 
 
The proposed dwellings would be served by six off-street parking spaces. The Essex County 
Council Vehicle Parking Standards requires 2 spaces per 2+ bedroom residential units (total of 
eight in this instance). However, the parking standards state that “a lower provision of vehicle 
parking may be appropriate in urban areas (including town centre locations) where there is good 
access to alternative forms of transport and existing car parking facilities”. Given the sustainable 
town centre location of the site, which is well served by local facilities and public transport, it is 
considered that six off-street parking spaces would be acceptable in this instance. 
 
The proposed development would close up the existing substandard vehicular entrance onto 
Station Road and would widen/improve the existing access onto Hemnall Street. As a result of 
these works the application site would have a beneficial impact on highway safety, despite the 
intensification of use of the site. There is adequate manoeuvrability space to allow for vehicles to 
enter and leave the site in forward gear, and therefore it is not considered that the proposal would 
be detrimental to highway safety or the free flow of traffic on this section of Hemnall Street. 
 
Other matters: 
 
Concern has been raised with regards to the originally submitted street scene and the choice of 
surrounding buildings shown. As a result of the neighbours letters, and a street scene produced by 
a neighbouring resident, a further street scene and some 3D images were submitted by the 
applicant to show the context of the building. 
 
Conclusion: 
 
In light of the above the proposed development is considered acceptable. The location of the site 
justifies providing less than the standard level of amenity space and parking provision, and the 
overall bulk, scale and design of the building is considered acceptable within the street scene. The 
introduction of additional landscaping would help to soften the impact of the development, and the 
works to the existing vehicle crossovers would improve the safety and usability of the highway. 
Whilst the proposed development is over the density requirements laid out in policy H3A, this 
proposal would make more efficient use of previously developed land and would be in line with the 
National Planning Policy Framework’s presumption in favour of sustainable development. As such 

Page 73



the application is considered to broadly meet with the relevant policies and guidance and is 
therefore recommended for approval. 
 
 
 
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: Graham Courtney 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564228 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  
 
 
 

Page 74



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

103.3m

1 0
6 . 1

m

106.7m

105.5m

1 0
6 . 1

m

105.5m

105.5m

105.5m

106.7m

103.3m

W a r d
 B d

y
C R

W a r d
 B d

y
C R

Warslin Lea

17

K y le mo r e

34

3a

Th e  S a le s

9

3a

Th e  S a le s

2

1

2

12

10a

1

12

1 5

10a

H i l
l c r
e s
t

L o d
g e

L a u
r e l s

Ke n
d a l

L i n
d e
n s

Sto n e le ig h
L o d

g e

H igh Gables

1 1

1 1
a

1  t
o  4

M a r ke t L o d g e

Ta b a raTh e  Wa ln u ts

T he

Stu mpHo u se

9 a

3 0

1 6

1 2

Warslin Lea

9

1 5

17

K y le mo r e

34

1 3

4 4

5

8

10

8
to

12

1 1 a

b

136a

1

F l ac k 's  Mews

1 to 9

134

146a
144

c

136

7

H o
u s
e

1 3

6

9
1 1

E d
m u

n d
s

1  t o  7

130 132
126

19

15

17

15a

6

W ork s

C l u
b

Fire
Station

E l  
S u

b  S
t a

1 2 2

116

118a

2

4 8

104

98

141

124

Ba n k

148d

156
160

140

1 2 0

1 3
5

1 2
3

1 2
1

Ta b a ra L o d
g e

Ke n
d a l

L o d
g e

L i n
d e
n s

H i l
l c r
e s
t

Sto n e le ig h
H igh Gables

Stu mp

Th e  Wa ln u ts

T he

M a r ke t L o d g e

Ho u se

9 a

1 1

1 1
a

L a u
r e l s

1 2

1 6

1 3

1  t
o  4

3 0
10

5

4 8

15

15a

E l  
S u

b  S
t a

1 3

1 1 a

8

9
1 1

156

Ba n k

148d
c

160

b

136a
134

146a
144

136

F l ac k 's  Mews

2

1

7

1 to 9

130 132

124

126

1 2 2

12

6

4 4

8
to

H o
u s
e

E d
m u

n d
s

1  t o  7

C l u
b

19

17

6

W ork s

118a

104

116

141

Station
Fire

98

140

1 2 0

1 3
5

1 2
3

1 2
1

B  
1 3

9 3

Tw a n k h a m s
A l l ey

B  
1 3

9 3

Tw a n k h a m s
A l l eyEFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee East 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

5 
Application Number: EPF/0916/13 
Site Name: 3A Hemnall Street, Epping, CM16 

4HR 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 

Page 75



Report Item No: 6 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0917/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Copped Hall Garden Nursery 

High Road 
Epping 
Essex 
CM16 4DH 
 

PARISH: Epping 
 
Epping Upland 
 

WARD: Broadley Common, Epping Upland and Nazeing 
 
Epping Lindsey and Thornwood Common 
 

APPLICANT: Mr C Dean 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Demolition of existing nursery buildings, erection of detached 
bungalow and garage and change of use of land to garden 
with provision of landscaping. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Refuse Permission 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=549036 
 
REASON FOR REFUSAL 
 
 
 
 

1 The site is within the area identified in the Epping Forest District Local Plan as 
Metropolitan Green Belt. The proposal to construct a bungalow with a detached 
garage is defined as being an inappropriate development and by definition would be 
harmful within the Green Belt. No adequate very special circumstances have been 
demonstrated by the applicant to outweigh the harm of the development to the 
Green Belt. The development is therefore contrary to policies CP2 and GB2A of the 
Adopted Local Plan and Alterations which are consistent with the National Planning 
Policy Framework.   
 

2 The proposed development due to its poor design, in particular its excessive building 
footprint, size and scale and the use of inappropriate materials all contributes to a 
development that would be detrimental to the character and appearance of both the 
Bell Common and Copped Hall Conservation Areas and will adversely affect the 
setting of the Grade Two Listed building known as Ladderstile Farmhouse. The 
development is therefore contrary to policies HC6, HC7 and HC12 of the Adopted 
Local Plan and Alterations and the National Planning Policy Framework.    

 
 
 
 

Page 76



This application is before this Committee since it has been ‘called in’ by Councillor  Whitbread 
(Pursuant to The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Directorate – Delegation of Council function, 
Schedule 1, Appendix A.(h)) 
 
Description of Site: 
 
The application site is located on the northern side of the High Road abutting the M25 motorway to 
the south west and opposite a cricket field on the edge of the town settlement of Epping. The site 
itself is relatively level consisting of a small frontage before expanding in width the further it 
continues in depth. The site has an approximate area of 0.75 of a hectare.  
 
The site is currently used as a nursery which contains two glasshouses and a shade tunnel, along 
with other associated structures, hard surfacing and landscape areas. Vehicle access to the site is 
from the High Road, via a forecourt which also provides access to three adjoining dwellings.  
 
Open fields used for agriculture are located to the west and north of the site whilst Epping Forest is 
located beyond the cricket field to the south. A linear row of dwelling houses are located to the 
north east of the site fronting onto the High Road. The subject site and the surrounding area are 
located within the Metropolitan Green Belt and the Copped Hall and Bell Common Conservation 
areas. The adjoining dwelling to the east known as Ladderstile Lodge is a listed building.  
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
Planning permission is sought to demolish the existing nursery buildings on the site and construct 
a new bungalow with a detached garage and to change the use of the land to residential. 
 
The proposed bungalow would be single storey with a basement containing three bedrooms. It 
would be shaped like an ‘H’ and would measure 17 metres by 22.4 metres containing an overall 
floor area of 276sqm. The bungalow would have a gable roof form with a height of 6.3 metres to its 
ridge. It would be centrally position towards the front of the site with the front façade being 
approximately in line with the adjoining dwelling known as Ladderstile Lodge.  
 
The proposed garage would be located approximately 3 metres from the south western corner of 
the bungalow. It would measure 6.4 by 6.4 metres and would also contain a gable roof form and 
would have a height of 5.6 metres to its ridge. 
 
The walls of the both the bungalow and the garage would be externally finished from yellow stock 
brickwork with red brickwork detailing whilst the roofs would be finished from grey slate.   
 
Relevant History: 
 
EPF/1293/96 - Demolition of existing glasshouses and replacement with new glasshouse 
(approved) 
 

Page 77



EPF/0347/98 - Erection of 2 poly tunnels for plant growing (approved) 
 
EPF/0805/99 - Use of existing nursery for the sale of a limited range of bought in related garden 
items (approved) 
 
EPF/0403/02 - Alterations and change of use of existing workshop, office, staff room and store 
building to one bedroom residential unit (approved) 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
Local Plan policies relevant to this application are: 
 

• CP1 Achieving sustainable development objectives 
• CP2 Protecting the quality of the rural and built environment 
• CP3 New development 
• CP5 Sustainable Buildings 
• DBE1 Design of new buildings 
• DBE2 Detrimental effect on existing surrounding properties 
• DBE4 Development within the Green Belt 
• DBE6 Car parking in new development 
• DBE8 Private amenity space 
• DBE9 Loss of Amenity 
• GB2A Development within the Green Belt 
• GB7A Conspicuous Development 
• HC6 Character, appearance and setting of conservation areas 
• HC7 Development within Conservation Areas 
• HC12 Development affecting the setting of listed buildings 
• LL1 Rural Landscapes 
• LL2 Inappropriate rural development  
• LL10 Protecting existing landscaping features 
• LL11 Landscaping scheme 
• ST1 Location of development 
• ST4 Highway safety 
• ST6 Vehicle parking 
• E4A Protection of employment sites 
• E4B Alternative uses of employment sites 

 
National Planning Policy Framework 
 
Summary of Representations 
 
EPPING TOWN COUNCIL: No objection 
 
NEIGHBOURS: 
 
Adjoining neighbours notified and a site notice displayed. Three letters of support were received 
from the occupiers of the following properties: 
 

Page 78



Ladderstile Lodge, High Road, Epping – Support 
 
The replacement dwelling house would be an improvement to the character of the surrounding 
locality and the adjoining dwellings. At present the existing nursery buildings are unattractive. In 
addition, existing deliveries to the site cause traffic problems and the replacement dwelling would 
result in less traffic.  
 
The Garden House, High Road, Epping – Support 
 
The proposal for a new dwelling would greatly enhance the area and is a far better outlook than 
the existing nursery buildings. The lorries delivering plant equipment can be very disruptive both to 
adjoining neighbours and the High Road.  
 
Ladderstyle Farm, High Road, Epping.  Support.  Current use generates heavy traffic which 
detracts from area and causes congestion and inconvenience as the entrance gets blocked. The 
development is in keeping with the historic nature of the area.  removal of glasshousing will 
enhance the aesthetics.  There is a significant need for additional housing in the District.  Proposal 
is a positive improvement that will enhance the site. 
 
EPPING SOCIETY: The society objects to this application as the site is located within the green 
belt. No adequate very special circumstances have been provided to outweigh the harm the 
proposed residential development would have on the green belt.  
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main issues to consider are: 
 

• Green belt 
• Design and appearance 
• Neighbouring amenities 

 
Green Belt: 
 
The proposal is neither a one for one replacement dwelling within the Green Belt, nor does it 
comprise the change of use or the adoption of an existing building on site. As such policies GB8A 
and GB15A do not apply when assessing the merits of this application.  
 
Policy GB2A sets out what is an appropriate use or development when the application site falls 
within the Green Belt. For all other uses and development, such as the proposed, it must preserve 
the openness of the Green Belt and must not conflict with the purposes of including land in the 
Green Belt.  
 
The National Planning Policy Framework explains that the fundlemental aim of Green Belt Policy is 
to prevent urban sprawl by keeping land permanently open and that the essential characteristics of 

Page 79



Green Belts are their openness. One of the purposes of including land within the Green Belt is to 
safeguard the countryside from encroachment. The Framework explains that the construction of 
new buildings as inappropriate development within the Green Belt.  
 
New development such as dwelling houses are regarded as inappropriate development within the 
Green Belt and they do not fall within any of the exceptions to this. The site would neither 
constitute as a limited infill within a village and glasshouses do not constitute as a brownfield site 
that has been previously developed on.  
 
The proposed development to construct the bungalow forms an inappropriate development which 
is, by definition, harmful to the Green Belt and should not be approved except in very special 
circumstances. Very special circumstances will not exist unless the potential harm to the Green 
Belt by reason of inappropriateness, and any other harm, is clearly outweighed by other 
considerations. 
 
The applicants agents has suggested within the Design and Access Statement that very special 
circumstance do exist that would outweigh the harm the development would have on the green 
belt. In particular, it is stated that the proposed would result in the volume of buildings on the site 
being reduced by 63% and the footprint of the buildings would be reduced by 69% and as such 
would meet the purposes of including land within the green belt. In addition, it was stated that the 
proposal would improve the general character and appearance of the surrounding locality and the 
historical significance of the conservation areas.  
 
Officers agree that the proposed would result in a less physical presence on the site than the 
existing nursery buildings however this does no overcome the fact that the proposal is still by 
definition an inappropriate form of development and therefore harmful upon the green belt.  
 
In addition, officers consider that there are no very special circumstances that make this site so 
unique to allow a residential development compared to any other glasshouse site within the 
district. Although each application should be assess on its own merits, allowing this form of 
development on a glasshouse site would set a strong precedent for similar development on other 
glasshouse sites within the district.    
 
Design and Appearance 
 
The site straddles two conservation areas: Bell Common Conservation Area at the south of the 
site and Copped Hall Conservation Area at the north. It also stands within the setting of Ladderstile 
Farmhouse, a grade II listed building of 17th century origin, and its associated outbuildings, some 
of which are late 19th century in date (as shown on historic OS maps). 
 
Officers have no objection to the removal of the glasshouses on the site as they do not contribute 
to the character of either conservation areas. Their removal would enhance the appearance of the 
areas, in particular Copped Hall Conservation Area, as they would be removed from long views 
over the historic, open landscape. The setting of the listed farmhouse would also be improved. 
 
However, officers have concerns regarding the size and design of the proposed house. Although 
the height of the house, at just one storey, will lessen its impact in views from the Copped Hall 
Conservation Area and allow the existing planting to screen it in views through the Bell Common 

Page 80



Conservation Area, the footprint of the proposed house is particularly large in relation to the 
existing houses and listed building to the east. In addition, the overall design is considered 
inappropriate for its context. 
 
The successful integration of modern buildings into a historical context, in this case a plot which 
lies adjacent to a listed farmhouse with a traditional ‘farmyard’ arrangement of outbuildings (some 
which are not historic but are traditional in style and scale), relies on the new building respecting 
the scale and, to some degree, style of the neighbouring buildings. Although the proposed house 
takes its architectural inspiration from a historic, well-detailed building elsewhere within the Bell 
Common Conservation Area, it bears no relation to the immediate setting in which it will be 
viewed, and does not respond to the neighbouring buildings in terms of its detailing or material 
palette. 
 
As a historic farmhouse, it is an important aspect of the listed building’s character that it is the 
dominant building on the site. At present, although the use of the surrounding buildings (modern 
and historic) are the same, i.e. dwelling houses, their scale and appearance as modest, vernacular 
outbuildings gives them a subservient character alongside the listed building which respects the 
historic hierarchy of the site. Of course, the glasshouses are much larger than the farmhouse but 
due to their agricultural/commercial nature (something to be expected next to a farmhouse), it is 
still viewed as the key building in the wider group. The proposed house, in some ways, has the 
appearance of a lodge type building because of its refined brick detailing and prominent elevations 
and is not in keeping with the existing agricultural style of the buildings on the site. Its prominent 
style will also increase its visual intrusiveness within the Copped Hall Conservation Area in views 
across the historic landscape. 
 
The proposal will have a detrimental impact on the character and appearance of the Copped Hall 
and Bell Common Conservation Areas and will adversely affect the setting of Ladderstile 
Farmhouse, a grade II listed building contrary to policies HC6, HC7 and HC12 of our Local Plan 
and Alterations and the National Planning Policy Framework.  
 
Neighbouring amenities: 
 
The proposed development would not result in a detrimental impact to the amenities of adjoining 
property occupiers. The new bungalow would be located a significant distance away from 
adjoining boundaries and dwellings as not to result in a loss of privacy, loss of light or visual blight. 
There would also be no unforeseen impacts in terms of noise and disturbance from that of which is 
normally associated with a residential dwelling house.  
 
Other issues: 
 
Due to the existing use of the site, there is the potential for contaminants to be present on this site. 
As such, Council’s contaminated land officer has requested the standard land contamination 
conditions be required if planning permission was to be granted that entails full surveys before any 
works are commenced on site.  
 
The site lies within Epping Forest District Council flood risk assessment zone. If the proposal was 
to be granted approval, due to the size of the development it would be necessary to avoid 
generating additional runoff and the opportunity of a new development should be taken to improve 
existing surface water runoff. As such a condition would have been required for a Floor Risk 
Assessment be provided and approved before any works are undertaken on site. 

Page 81



 
The application was referred to Essex County Council’s highways officer who had no objections to 
the proposed development. It was stated that compared to the existing use of the site, it is 
considered to be a highway gain as the vehicle movements, and size of vehicles, will dramatically 
decrease through the access onto this busy section of the High Road.  
 
The proposed development would be more than able to meet the required needs for future 
occupiers in terms of off street parking and private amenity provisions.  
 
Conclusion: 
 
Given the above appraisal, the proposal would be of an inappropriate development which by 
definition is harmful to the green belt. In addition due to the development excessive size, scale and 
inappropriate materials, it would also result in harm to the character and appearance of both 
conservation areas and the setting of the nearby listed building. The development is therefore 
contrary to policies CP2, GB2A, HC6, HC7 and HC12 of the Adopted Local Plan and the National 
Planning Policy Framework.  
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: Lindsay Trevillian 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564 337 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 82



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

111.9m

110.6m

111.9m

110.6m

109.4m109.4m

111.3m111.3m

Def

D e
f C H

E D  &

C H

W a r d
 B d y

U n
d

D e f

F W

U nd

C H

C H

Def

D e
f

U n
d

W a r d
 B d y

F W

E D  &

U nd

D e f

G r i f f i n
' s  W

o o d
 C o t t a

g e s

New Farm
House

7

The

Copped Hall

2

1

Garden Nursery

Ladderstile Lodge

Garden
House

Park Cottages

3

Yewtree Cottage

2

G r i f f i n
' s  W

o o d
 C o t t a

g e s

New Farm
House

7

The

Ladderstile Lodge

2

1

Copped Hall
Garden Nursery

Garden
House

Park Cottages

3

Yewtree Cottage

2

M  2 5M  2 5

B  1 3 9 3
B  1 3 9 3

PondPond

P a t h  ( u m )

Bel l  C om m on Tunnel

P a t h  ( u m )
Cricket Ground

Bel l  C om m on Tunnel

Cricket GroundGantry

MastMast

Gantry

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee East 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

6 
Application Number: EPF/0917/13 
Site Name: Copped Hall Garden Nursery, High 

Road, Epping, CM16 4DH 
Scale of Plot: 1/2500 

Page 83



Report Item No: 7 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1043/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Great Notts  

Moreton Road  
Ongar 
Essex 
CM5 0LU 
 

PARISH: Moreton, Bobbingworth and the Lavers 
 

WARD: Moreton and Fyfield 
 

APPLICANT: Mrs Shirley Bates 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Application for engineering operations comprising formation of 
roadway and installation of cesspool (Resubmitted application 
to EPF/0132/13) 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=549756 
 
CONDITIONS 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: 2467-01, 2467-02 
 
 

3 No development shall take place until details of the proposed surface materials for 
the roadway have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The agreed surface treatment shall be installed and retained thereafter, 
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 

4 Prior to commencement of works, details showing the means to prevent the 
discharge of surface water from the development onto the highway shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved 
scheme shall be carried out in its entirety prior to the access becoming operational 
and shall be retained at all times thereafter. 
 

5 No development shall take place until details of foul and surface water disposal have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such agreed details. 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 84



 
This application is before this Committee since it is for a type of development that cannot be 
determined by Officers if more than two objections material to the planning merits of the proposal 
to be approved are received (Pursuant to The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Directorate – 
Delegation of Council function, Schedule 1, Appendix A.(f).) 

 
Description of Proposal: 
 
Resubmitted application for the formation of a roadway and installation of a cesspool. The 
proposed roadway would be 3m wide and would stretch from the recently approved new field 
entrance to a section of land to the rear of the site. The proposed cesspool would be located close 
to the recently approved field access. 
 
Description of Site: 
 
Great Notts is an agricultural farm approximately 4 hectares in area located on the northern side of 
Moreton Road. The site lies within the Green Belt and an EFDC flood risk assessment zone. 
 
Relevant History: 
 
EPF/1246/94 - Retrospective application for retention of field shelter for horses and livestock – 
approved/conditions 23/05/95 
EPF/1493/99 - Demolition of sheds and replace with two storey barn – approved/conditions 
24/03/00 
EPF/1653/12 - Resiting of existing field gate – approved/conditions 02/11/12 
EPF/0132/13 - Application for engineering operations comprising formation of roadway and 
installation of cesspool – refused 19/03/13 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
GB2A – Development in the Green Belt 
GB7A – Conspicuous development 
ST4 – Road safety 
U2B – Flood risk assessment zones 
 
The above policies form part of the Councils 1998 Local Plan. Following the publication of the 
NPPF, policies from this plan (which was adopted pre-2004) are to be afforded due weight where 
they are consistent with the Framework. The above policies are broadly consistent with the NPPF 
and therefore are afforded full weight. 
 
Consultation Carried Out and Summary of Representations Received: 
 
1 neighbouring resident was consulted and a Site Notice was displayed on 21/06/13. This report 
has been produced before the expiration of 21 days from the date of the Site Notice (due to a 
delay in it being displayed). Therefore, any additional comments received will be verbally reported 
to Members. 
 
PARISH COUNCIL – Object to this application on the basis of: 

• Inappropriate development within the Green Belt without any very special circumstances to 
permit development. 

• Concerns over Highway Safety – width of road would cause vehicles towing caravans to 
enter/exit directly onto opposite side of the road. Access onto A414 from Moreton Road is 
inadequate and would be dangerous at busy times. 

 

Page 85



GREAT NOTTS, MORETON ROAD – Unclear as to the justification of the works and on how the 
caravan site would be monitored. 
 
ROUGHTALLEYS, MORETON ROAD – Object as the use of the site for caravans and the access 
would be detrimental to the use of the highway and as there are no pavements within the vicinity of 
the site. 
 
TY GWYN, MORETON ROAD – Object as the use of the site for caravans would be out of keeping 
with the area and would be detrimental to the environment. 
 
WINDY RIDGE, MORETON ROAD – Object as it is unlikely that the restrictions of the camping 
and caravanning club will be adhered to. 
 
HIGHFIELD, MORETON ROAD – Object as this would result in noise and nuisance to the 
neighbouring residents, the site would not be adequately managed, and as this could be an 
attempt to revive a residential planning application for the adjacent barn at a later date. 
 
MILLRISE, MORETON ROAD – Object as this development is purely to enable use of the site for 
camping and caravanning purposes and/or for illegal use of the adjacent barn. 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main considerations are the impact on the Green Belt, highway safety and flood risk. The 
previous application was refused planning permission for the following reason: 
 

The proposed engineering operations would introduce unnecessary and unjustified 
additional development to the site that would erode the rural character and 
openness of the area. As such, the proposed works would constitute inappropriate 
development harmful to the Green Belt. There are no very special circumstances 
that clearly outweigh this harm, and therefore the proposal is contrary to the 
guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework and policies 
GB2A and GB7A of the adopted Local Plan and Alterations. 

 
Green Belt: 
 
The proposed development would result in a very long, 3m wide section of roadway and a 
cesspool being installed in an otherwise green and relatively undeveloped parcel of land. The 
previous application put forward that the works were required to serve a camping/caravanning 
area to be used under the 28 day rule permitted by the GPDO, however no further details 
regarding this were provided. Due to this lack of information, the proposed engineering operations 
were previously considered unnecessary and unjustified. 
 
The current resubmitted application contains additional information with regards to the need for the 
roadway and cesspool. The roadway and cesspool have been confirmed as necessary in order for 
an exemption certificate to be issued from the Caravan and Camping Club. The submitted 
Camping and Caravanning Club booklet ‘Your Certified Site - All You Need To Know’ states: 
 

The Camping and Caravanning Club has special exemptions to run small sites, meaning 
that no planning permission or site licence is needed from your local authority. 

 
In legal terms… “Under the terms of Paragraph 5 of the Caravan Sites and Control of 
Development Act (1960), The Camping and Caravanning Club is entitled, as long as the 
basic requirements are met, to issue a certificate to a landowner for the use of an assigned 
area of land, for not more than five members’ caravans or motorhomes without the 
landowner having to obtain planning permission”. 

Page 86



 
This exemption would only allow for a maximum of five caravans or motorhomes and ten tents 
(unless express permission to have more has been granted by the Club) and members can only 
camp (within a tent, caravan or motorhome) for a maximum of 28 days at a time. 
 
Given the above intention, the use of the land for camping and caravanning is not under 
consideration here. The only aspect of the proposal being considered is the proposed roadway 
and cesspool. Nonetheless, these works are required in order for an exemption certificate to be 
issued. A copy of an email from the Club has been submitted with the application. Within this it 
states: 
 

“We base the necessity for Certificated Sites having a chemical disposal point on 
information contained within the Model Standards for Touring Sites in the Caravan Sites 
and Control of Development Act 1960, section 5, which states that ‘whether of not WCs are 
provide, a properly designated disposal point for the contents of chemical closets should be 
provided together with an adjacent adequate water supply of water for cleansing 
containers. The method of disposal will need to be considered in light of the particular 
circumstances and should be to the satisfaction of the local authority and the appropriate 
water authority.’ This states that a CDP is necessary on site and, as a result, it is logical 
that related engineering works will be necessary too. 

 
As for engineering works for the track way, it is necessary for the entrance to the site to be 
so installed as to enable units to pass on and off the site safely, therefore engineering 
works will be essential to this. 

 
I hope this is assurance enough that the proposed works are necessary in the securing of a 
certificate at the proposed site.” 

 
Unlike the previous application, it is considered that this resubmitted application provides sufficient 
justification for the works. The proposed surface material for the roadway would be grass seeding 
over the sub-base, which would ensure that the roadway appears reasonably inconspicuous within 
the landscape. Furthermore, the installation of cesspools is not uncommon within the Green Belt, 
provided they are considered necessary. As the proposed engineering operations are considered 
necessary in order to obtain an exemption certificate from the Camping and Caravanning Club, it 
is felt that the works would no longer constitute inappropriate development within the Green Belt. 
Small scale facilities necessary for outdoor recreation are appropriate development. 
 
Highway safety: 
 
The proposed new roadway would be accessed from a recently approved field gate on Moreton 
Road. The maximum number of caravans/motorhomes that could be stationed on the site is five, 
and the maximum number of tents is ten, and none can stay for more than 28 days at a time. 
Whilst this would result in a number of vehicles entering and leaving the site (including those 
towing caravans), Essex County Council Highways have no objection to the works on grounds of 
highway safety, subject to the imposition of conditions. 
 
Flood risk: 
 
The application site lies within an EFDC flood risk assessment zone. Whilst the proposed 
development would only cause a negligible increase in surface water runoff, the applicant is 
proposing to dispose of surface water by sustainable drainage system. Further details of this 
would be required. Furthermore, additional details regarding the cesspool and the foul water 
drainage would also be required. These can be dealt with by the imposition of conditions. 
 
 

Page 87



 
Other matters: 
 
The majority of objections relate to the use of the site as a camping and caravan site, which in 
itself does not require planning permission. Although the engineering operations are necessary to 
obtain an exemption certificate for the use of the rear of the site for this purpose, the front section 
of the site (closest to the road) could be utilised instead, which would negate the need for the 
roadway. This is considered to be a likely ‘fallback’ position that should be given some weight in 
this decision, particularly as this would be more visually intrusive than the use of the rear section of 
the site that is a considerable distance from the public highway. 
 
Concern has been raised with regards to the applicant complying with the requirements of the 
exemption certificate (i.e. the number of caravans and length of time that they can remain on site). 
These requirements are monitored and enforced by the Camping and Caravanning Club who 
would revoke the licence if this is breached. 
 
Conclusion: 
 
The proposed engineering operations are considered necessary to enable an exemption certificate 
to be issued from the Camping and Caravanning Club to the applicant. As such, it is considered 
that the proposal no longer constitutes inappropriate development within the Green Belt. The 
visual impact of the development would be minimal, and the use of the site for camping and 
caravanning cannot be considered as part of this application. Due to the above it is considered 
that, on balance, the application complies with the relevant Local Plan policies and is therefore 
recommended for approval. 
 
 
 
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: Graham Courtney 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564228 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  
 
 
 

Page 88



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

80.2m

70.7m

78.3m

Great Notts

M O R E T
O N  R

O A D

P o n d
Pond

Pond

Pond

GP

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee East 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

7 
Application Number: EPF/1043/13 
Site Name: Great Notts, Moreton Road, Ongar, 

CM5 OLU 
Scale of Plot: 1/2500 

Page 89



Report Item No: 8 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1082/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 2 Elm Gardens 

North Weald 
Epping 
Essex 
CM16 6DR 
 

PARISH: North Weald Bassett 
 

WARD: North Weald Bassett 
 

APPLICANT: Dr Hassiba Mohammad 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Change of use from dwelling house to single chair dental 
surgery (D1) to serve the local community. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=549931 
 
CONDITIONS  
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 
 

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: Drawing (1), Drawing 2 
 

3 The premises shall be used solely as a single chair dental surgery and for no other 
purpose (including any other purpose in Class D1 of the Schedule to the Town & 
Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (as amended), or in any provision 
equivalent to that Class in any Statutory Instrument revoking or re-enacting that 
Order. There shall be no further surgery, consultancy room or hygienist operating 
from the site, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
 

4 The dental surgery hereby permitted shall not be open to patients/visitors outside 
the hours of 09:00 to 17:00 on Monday to Friday and at no time on Saturdays, 
Sundays and Bank/Public Holidays. 
 

5 The parking area shown on the approved plan shall be provided prior to the first 
occupation of the development and shall be retained free of obstruction for the 
parking of staff, patients and visitors vehicles. 
 

6 There shall be no parking within the rear curtilage of the site other than that 
indicated on the approved plan ref: Drawing 2. 
 

 

Page 90



This application is before this Committee since it is for a type of development that cannot be 
determined by Officers if more than two objections material to the planning merits of the proposal 
to be approved are received (Pursuant to The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Directorate – 
Delegation of Council function, Schedule 1, Appendix A.(f).) 

 
Description of Site: 
 
The application site is a link-detached dwelling (attached to the neighbour by way of a single 
storey garage) located on the corner of Elm Gardens and the High Road. This is one of thirteen 
dwellings within Elm Gardens, which is a small residential close. The rear boundary of the site 
forms part of the side boundary of No. 8 Elm Close. There is a small open green verge to the 
immediate northwest of the site, which provides sight lines to the southwest when leaving the 
close. The dwelling currently benefits from two parking spaces (including the attached garage) and 
a single vehicle crossover. 
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
Consent is being sought for the change of use of the existing dwellinghouse to a single chair 
dental surgery (Use Class D1). The external alterations to the site would entail the creation of a 
second vehicle crossover and the creation of additional car parking within the curtilage of the site. 
It is proposed that there would be two new staff spaces created to the side of the building (along 
with the use of the garage) and three spaces would be made available at the front of the site for 
patients/visitors. 
 
Relevant History: 
 
EPF/0692/13 - Change of use from dwelling house to dental surgery (D1) – withdrawn 29/05/13 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
CP1 – Achieving sustainable development objectives 
CP3 – New development 
DBE9 – Loss of amenity 
RP5A – Adverse environmental impacts 
ST1 – Location of development 
ST6 – Vehicle parking 
 
The above policies form part of the Councils 1998 Local Plan. Following the publication of the 
NPPF, policies from this plan (which was adopted pre-2004) are to be afforded due weight where 
they are consistent with the Framework. The above policies are broadly consistent with the NPPF 
and therefore are afforded full weight. 
 
Consultation Carried Out and Summary of Representations Received: 
 
12 neighbouring residents were consulted and a Site Notice was displayed on 19/06/13. This 
report has been produced before the expiration of 21 days from the date of the Site Notice. 
Therefore, any additional comments received will be verbally reported to Members. 
 
PARISH COUNCIL – No objection. 
 
5 ELM GARDENS – Object due to the increased traffic, vehicle movements and parking that would 
result from the proposed change of use, as the storage of drugs could result in crime, this would 
not serve the community as it would not treat National health patients, and as the number of 
patients is grossly underestimated. 
 

Page 91



6 ELM GARDENS – Object due to insufficient parking provision, highway safety concerns, and 
regards to the adequacy of the existing drainage. 
 
7 ELM GARDENS – Object due to the increased traffic and associated highway safety concerns, 
the loss of amenity to neighbours due to noise, parking concerns, and concern about a possible 
alternative D1 use taking place. 
 
8 ELM GARDENS – Object due to the impact on neighbours amenities due to the parking layout, 
possible impact on sewage, parking and highway safety concerns, this location is unsuitable for a 
dental surgery, and as the dentist would not serve the local community. 
 
9 ELM GARDENS – Object as this will no doubt grow beyond a single chair surgery and as this 
would introduce strangers into the close, would make it less safe for children, and due to 
inadequate parking provision. 
 
10A ELM GARDENS – Object as this would result in increased parking and a road hazard. Also 
concerned about toxic and bio hazards being discharged directly into the sewerage system. 
 
10B ELM GARDENS – Object due to insufficient parking provision and impact on highway safety. 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main considerations are the impact on the surrounding area and with regards to parking 
provision/highway safety. 
 
Impact on surrounding area: 
 
The proposed development would result in a change of use of the existing dwellinghouse into a 
commercial dentist. The application site is located within a small close containing thirteen 
residential properties, and is surrounded by residential dwellings. Notwithstanding this, it is very 
common for dwellings within residential areas to be converted into dental surgeries, particularly if 
there is a need for such within that catchment area. 
 
The applicant has highlighted that there is currently no dental surgery within North Weald and as 
such residents have to travel to other towns for dental care. The Parish Council have raised no 
objection to this application, and the comments received on the previous (withdrawn) application 
stated that “a dental surgery is welcomed in the village” (although it should be noted that they did 
object to the previous application due to the poorly proposed parking layout). As such, it is clear 
that there is a need for a dental surgery within the area, which is given significant weight. 
 
The application dwelling is a detached property (albeit linked to its neighbour by a single storey 
garage) and is located at the entrance to the close. As such there would be less noise nuisance 
caused to the immediate neighbour and patients/visitors would not have to travel past other 
dwellings in Elm Gardens to visit the surgery. Although the site is within a residential area it is only 
approximately 130m from North Weald’s designated Local Centre and is close to the High Road, 
which is a very busy highway that carries heavy amounts of traffic. As such, subject to the 
proposal complying with highways/parking requirements, it is considered that the principal of this 
change of use is acceptable in this location. Whilst the proposed surgery is for a private practice, 
the applicant has highlighted their intention to seek NHS arrangements in order to cater for NHS 
patients. 
 
Parking provision/highway safety: 
 
The current dwellinghouse benefits from an attached garage with space in front for a single 
parking space. The proposed change of use would entail the creation of a second vehicle 

Page 92



crossover at the northern end of the site frontage to grant access to additional parking along the 
side of the building. The proposed parking layout would result in a total of three parking spaces for 
staff, with three parking spaces within the front garden being used for patients/visitors. Although 
two of these spaces would form the access to the staff parking spaces, these would only be used 
for parking during the times that staff are working and therefore would not need to be kept clear. 
 
The proposed use would be for a single chair dental surgery that would employ one dentist, one 
nurse and one receptionist. The internal layout of the surgery would create one surgery, one x-ray 
enclosure, one decontamination enclosure, one reception room, one toilet, and a staff area. The 
Essex County Council Vehicle Parking Standards requires 1 space per full time equivalent staff 
and 3 spaces per consulting rooms in D1 medical centres (there is no specific standards for a 
dental surgery). Based on the proposed use of the site this would require a maximum of 6 off-
street parking spaces, which is achieved on this site. 
 
In terms of vehicle movements, the applicant has provided an estimate of some 15 patients visiting 
the site per day, which equates to one every half hour (which is stated as being consistent with 
most private dental practices). This figure is reached as follows: 
 

• The total population of North Weald is stated as approximately 4500, with an estimated 
10% being children between 4-12 years old. 

• Potential patients from adjoining villages are estimated to add a further 1500 persons, 
resulting in a possible patient pool of 6000 persons, the majority of which will already be on 
a dentists list. 

• Based on these figures, and assuming a dissatisfaction factor of 30% (with existing 
providers), the maximum number of patients to eventually (and permanently) attend the 
proposed surgery is estimated at 1620 patients (based on 30% of 6000 minus 10% as 
being under 4 years of age). 

• Most patients attend a dental surgery an average of 2 visits per year, which equates to a 
maximum number of attendances being 3240 patients per year. 

• Assuming the surgery will operate 44 weeks per year, the weekly attendance would be 75 
visits, and the daily attendance would be 15 visits per day. 

• The proposed opening hours of the surgery are 09:00 to 17:00 Monday to Friday, which 
would equate to one patient every 30 minutes. 

 
One neighbouring resident considers that this is a ‘gross underestimation’ of patient numbers, 
however has not provided any evidence as to why or any alternative estimated figures. A single 
chair private dental surgery would not be able to see more than one patient at a time, and it is 
unlikely that visits would be more frequent than one every half hour. As such, it is unlikely that any 
additional parking space over the proposed three patient/visitor spaces would be required. 
 
The proposed change of use, additional parking provision and new vehicle access has been 
assessed by Essex County Council Highway, however they raise no objection to the proposed 
development on highway safety grounds. 
 
Other matters: 
 
Concerns have been raised with regards to the existing drainage system of the area and the 
impact the proposal would have on this. It is unclear how a single chair dental surgery would have 
any greater impact on the water utilities than a single dwellinghouse (and it is in reality likely to 
have less impact), but nonetheless this is not considered to be a material planning considerations. 
 
Concern has been raised with regards to potential crime being attracted due to the storage of 
drugs on site, and the possibility of toxic and bio hazards being discharged into the sewer system. 

Page 93



Both these factors are subject to strict rules controlled and enforced outside of the Planning 
regime, and as such are not considered to constitute a material planning consideration. 
 
Conclusion: 
 
The proposed change of use of a dwellinghouse to a dental surgery in a residential area such as 
this is not uncommon. The detached nature of the existing building, its location at the entrance to 
Elm Gardens, and the ability to provide sufficient off-street vehicle parking make this site suitable 
for such a conversion, and the overall need for a dental surgery within North Weald is given 
significant weight in this consideration. Due to the above it is considered that the application 
complies with the relevant Local Plan policies and Government guidance and is therefore 
recommended for approval. 
 
 
 
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: Graham Courtney 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564228 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  
 
 
 

Page 94



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

2

1 0

6 1

20

1 1

6

88
1

7

12

15

2 9

11

23

1 to 6

1
2

2

5

6 7
6 8

6

64 3 5

73

6 9

10b

6

8

1

7 5

10a

10

3

12

19

32

4

33 to 60

20

31
21

11

22

1 1

7

1 4

5 9

Church

6 3

104

100

6 2 61

1 1

2

1 0

20

7

11

1

104

6 1

100

88

15

1 to 6

10

2

10b

8

12

6

73

3 5

6 9

2 9

7 5

23

6 3

64

10a

33 to 60

6 2 61

6 7
6 8

12
11

2

19

5

1

4

1 4

3
20

6
6 1

1 1

7

21

Church

5 9
22

3231

W H E E L E R S

H
I G

H
 R

O
A DF ARM  GARDE NS

ELM  GARDENS

HIGHA M  V IEWD R
I V

E

H A R R I SO N

T H E  B I R
C H E S

HIGHA M  V IEW

T H E  B I R
C H E S

H A R R I SO N

F ARM  GARDE NS

H
I G

H
 R

O
A D

ELM  GARDENS

D R
I V

E

W H E E L E R S

StaSta

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee East 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

8 
Application Number: EPF/1082/13 
Site Name: 2 Elm Gardens, North Weald, 

Epping, CM16 6DR 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 

Page 95



Page 96

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 ADVICE TO PUBLIC AND SPEAKERS AT COUNCIL PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEES
	Area Planning Subcommittee East - members photo sheet 12-13

	3 MINUTES
	Minutes Public Pack, 01/07/2013 Area Planning Subcommittee East

	7 DEVELOPMENT CONTROL
	Plans east agenda


